
 

Date: July 04, 2023 

To, 

BSE Limited 

Listing Department,  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 

Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 

 

Scrip Code: 974215 & 974289 

 

Subject: Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for FY 2022-23  

 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

 

Please note that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is scheduled to be held on 

Wednesday, July 26, 2023. Pursuant to regulation 53(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we enclose herewith the Annual 

Report sent to the shareholders along with the notice of the AGM.  

 

The said Notice and the Annual Report are also available on the website of the Company i.e. 

www.irbinfratrust.co.in.  

 

We request you to take the above on record. 

 

Thanking you. 

For Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  

 

 

 

Shilpa Todankar  

Director 
 

http://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/


 

NOTICE  
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Solapur 
Yedeshi Tollway Limited will be held on Wednesday, July 26, 2023 at 1.10 p.m. (IST) via Video 
Conference Facility or other Audio Visual Means, to transact the following business:  
 
Ordinary Business:  
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Abhay Phatak (DIN: 09519500), Directors, who retires by 
rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
Special Business: 
 
3.   To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 
and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s. V R & 
Associates, Cost Accountant (Membership No. 32936 & Firm Registration No. 000516), 
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2023-24, amounting to Rs. 50,000/- p.a. (Rupees Fifty Thousand 
only) be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.” 

 
 
 
Regd. Office: 
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani 
Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill 
Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 400076  
 
Place: Mumbai                                                                                                    
Date: : July 03, 2023 

By order of the Board 
For Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  

 
 

Sd/-                                                
                  Shilpa Todankar                 

                                                                      Director  
DIN : 08683910 

Address: 408. Ganeshkunj CHS, Maheshwari Nagar, 
Kondivita, Andheri (East) Mumbai - 400059 

 
  



  

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
Item No. 2 
 
Mr. Abhay Phatak (DIN: 09519500) was appointed as non-executive Director of the Company liable 
to retire by rotation on March 9, 2022. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Mr. Abhay Phatak being the longest appointed Director in the office would retire by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. Mr. Abhay Phatak being eligible has 
offered himself for re-appointment as Director liable to retire by rotation. Accordingly, the Board 
recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Mr. Abhay Phatak as a Director, for the 
approval by the shareholders of the Company. 
 
Mr. Abhay P. Phatak, aged 51 years, has a bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Mumbai University 
in the year 1992. He has around 31 years of experience of working in various fields & at various 
positions, including the Accounts & Project Finance. 
 
Mr. Abhay Phatak does not hold share in the Company. The details of Board Meetings attended by 
him during the year under review are given in Board’s Report. He is not related to any Director and/or 
Key Managerial Personnel of the company. The Directorship and Membership of Committees held by 
Mr. Abhay Phatak in other companies is as given below: 
 
Sr. 
No 

Names of the Companies  Director / Membership of Committee 

1.  CG Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee 

2.  AE Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee 

3.  Kaithal Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee 

4.  IRB Hapur Moradabad Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee, Member of Audit 
Committee 

5.  Kishangarh Gulabpura Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee 

6.  Udaipur Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee 

7.  Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee and Risk Management 
Committee 

8.  IRB Westcoast Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee 



  

 
Except Mr. Abhay Phatak, being an appointee, none of the Directors of the Company and their 
relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 2. 
 
The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval of 
the members. 
 
Item No. 3 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. V R & Associates, Cost Accountant Firm, 
to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2022-23. In terms of the 
provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records & 
Audit) Rules, 2014 and Rule 14(a)(ii) of The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is to be ratified by the Members of the Company. The 
remuneration of Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) per annum is payable to M/s. V R & 
Associates, Cost Accountant for the audit to be conducted for financial year 2023-24. Accordingly, 
the Members are requested to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the audit to be 
conducted for financial year 2023-24. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is in any way 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.  
 
The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for 
approval by the Members. 
 
 
 
Regd. Office: 
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani 
Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill 
Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 400076  
 
Place: Mumbai                                                                                                    
Date: July 03, 2023 

By order of the Board 
For Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  

 
 

Sd/-                                                                
                                    Shilpa Todankar                 

                                                                      Director  
DIN : 08683910 

Address: 408. Ganeshkunj CHS, Maheshwari Nagar, 
Kondivita, Andheri (East) Mumbai - 400059 
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NOTES: 
 
1. In view of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (the “MCA”) through circular 

dated December 28, 2022, any other applicable Circular issued from time to time including any 
amendments/clarifications thereto (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Circulars”) have 
allowed the Companies to conduct their Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing 
(VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) up to September 30, 2023, without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue, subject to the fulfilment of conditions as specified 
in the circulars. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the circulars, 
the AGM of the Company is being held through VC. 

 
2. On the AGM date at scheduled time, for participation in Video Conference the Shareholders are 

requested click on the web-link to be provided separately to participate through Video 
Conference. 

 
3. The facility of joining the AGM through VC will be opened 15 minutes before the scheduled 

start-time of the AGM. 
 
4. The Annual Reports (including financial Statements, Board’s report, Auditor’s report or other 

documents required to be attached therewith), is being sent by email to the members, trustees for 
the debenture holder of debentures issued by the Company if any and to all other persons so 
entitled. Further, the notice for AGM shall be given only through emails registered with the 
Company or with the depository participant / depository. 

 
5. Accordingly, the financial statements (including Board’s report, Auditor’s report and other 

documents required to be attached therewith) / Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 and 
AGM Notice are being sent to the shareholders on their email addresses registered with the 
Company or with the depository participant / depository. 

 
6. As per the Circulars, the Shareholders may also note that the Company would not be sending the 

Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 and AGM notice by post to the shareholders whose 
email address is not registered with the Company or depository participants/depository. 

 
7. The resolutions as set out in this Notice will be decided on a show of hands at the AGM. 
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8. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at 

the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not 
be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC, physical attendance of 
Members has been dispensed with. 

 
9. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the 

AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However, in 
pursuance of Section 112 and 113 of the Act, representatives of the members may be appointed 
for the purpose of participation and voting in the meeting held through VC or OAVM. 

 
10. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are 

requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting by sending email to 
irbinfrastructuretrust@irb.co.in 

 
11. The members attending the meeting through VC shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 

quorum of the meeting under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
12. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained 

under Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the 
directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically 
for inspection by the members during the AGM. 

 
13. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any 

fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members 
seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to irbinfrastructuretrust@irb.co.in 

 
14. As the AGM will be held through VC, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 
 
15. Members are requested to address all correspondence, to The Director, Ms. Shilpa Todankar, Off 

No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, 
Mumbai – 400076 or send email to shilpa.todankar@irb.co.in. 

 
16. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached and 

forms part of this notice. 
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Instructions for the Members for attending the AGM through Video Conference: 

1. Members may note that the ensuing AGM of the Company will be convened through VC in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Circulars. 
The facility to attend the meeting through VC will be provided by the Company. The web-link for 
attending the AGM, has been provided in this notice. The Shareholders are requested to click on 
the said link to attend live proceedings of AGM. 

 
2. Members can participate in the AGM through their desktops / smartphones / laptops etc. 

However, for better experience and smooth participation, it is advisable to join the meeting 
through desktops / laptops with high-speed internet connectivity. 

 
3. Please note that participants connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through laptop 

connecting via mobile hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

4. The facility of joining the AGM through VC will be opened 15 minutes before the scheduled 
start-time of the AGM. 
 

5. Members who would like to express their views/ask questions may post their 
queries/views/questions by sending email to kaustubh.shevade@irb.co.in by mentioning the 
name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number. The window shall remain 
active from 10.00 am (IST) on July 24, 2023 until 5.00 pm (IST) on July 25, 2023. 
 

6. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact on email: 
Kaustubh.shevade@irb.co.in or Tel +91 40 6640 4200. 

 
Instructions for members for voting during the AGM session: 

1. The Company has designated the email address ‘kaustubh.shevade@irb.co.in, (hereinafter 
referred as Designated email address) on which the members can send email for conveying their 
vote when a poll is required to be taken during the meeting on any resolution. 
 

2. The members are requested to cast their votes on the resolution only by sending emails through 
their email addresses which are registered with the Company. The said emails shall only be sent 
to the designated email address as mentioned hereinabove.  
 

3. The Company has provided the facility to Members to enable them to exercise their right to vote 
on the matters listed in the Notice by sending email to the designated email id during the AGM. 
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Board’s Report 
Dear Stakeholders,  
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their report on the business and operations, along with the 
audited financial statements of your Company, for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

(Amount in millions)  
Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

Total Income 1,312.68 867.75 
Total Expenditure 285.72 265.87 
Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax 1,026.96 601.88 
Less: Finance costs 

  Depreciation 
1,083.45 

168.97 
1,029.00 

116.74 
Profit/ loss before tax (225.44) (543.85) 
Less: Provision for tax - - 
Current tax - (0.16) 
MAT Credit Entitlement - - 
Deferred tax - - 
Profit/ loss after tax before minority interest (225.44) (543.70) 
Less: Minority interest - - 
Profit/ loss after tax and after minority interest (225.44) (543.70) 
Add: Profit/ loss at the beginning of the year (2,058.26) (1,514.56) 
Profit available for appropriation (2,283.71) (2,058.26) 
Appropriations: 
Interim Dividend/ Proposed Interim Dividend 
Tax on equity dividend 
Transfer to General Reserve 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period: 
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 

- - 

Balance Carried Forward to Balance Sheet (2,283.71) (2,058.26) 
 
  Your Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to the General Reserves. 
  



 

OPERATION AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW  
 
During the year, your Company earned total income of Rs.1,312.68 Million and Earnings before Interest, 
Depreciation and Tax of Rs.1,026.96 Million for the year ended March 31, 2023. After providing for 
Finance costs of Rs.1083.45 Million and for Depreciation and amortization of Rs.168.97 Million, the 
Loss before tax is Rs.225.44 Million. The net Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 stood at Rs.225.44 
Million, as against Loss of Rs.543.70 Million for the previous year.  
 
There is no change in the nature of business of the Company, during the year under review. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 
Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments, if any, are given in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
 
DIVIDEND  
 
Your Company has not recommended any dividend for the year under review. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL 
 
As on March 31, 2023 the Authorized and Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company stood at                        
Rs. 98,25,00,000/-. During the year under review, the Company has not issued and allotted Equity Shares. 
 
DEBENTURES 
 
During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted 5,910 INR denominated senior, 
secured, redeemable, listed, rated, non-convertible debentures (the Debentures) of ₹ 10 Lakh each in two 
tranches on private placement basis. The Debentures issued by the Company are listed with BSE Limited 
w.e.f. September 23, 2022. 
 
Debenture Trustees 
SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 
Address : 202, Maker Tower, ‘E’, 
Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai – 400005 
Email: corporate@sbicaptrustee.com 
Website: www.sbicaptrustee.com 
Contact No. 022 4302 5555 
Fax – 022 22040465 



 

 
CREDIT RATING OF COMPANY  
 
CRISIL Ratings Limited has assigned rating to CRISIL AAA/Stable for Non-Convertible Debentures of 
Rs.5,910 Million. 
 
BORROWINGS  
 
As on March 31, 2023, your Company’s project borrowings availed stood at Rs.5,910 Millions. 
 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
 
During the year under review, the Company had no subsidiary(ies). 
 
CHANGE IN HOLDING COMPANY 
 
During the year under review, there is no change in holding entity of the Company. 
 
DIRECTORS  

Current Directors of the Company are Mr. Abhay Phatak, Ms. Shilpa Todankar, Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 
and Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan. 
 
During the year under review, Mr. Devendra Ranka was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Mr. 
Devendra Ranka was appointed as Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Mitesh Kamariya was appointed as 
Company Secretary of the Company. 
 
Mr. Abhay Phatak (DIN: 09519500), Director of the Company, is liable to retire by rotation at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your 
Directors recommend his appointment as Director liable to retire by rotation. 
 
All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 
down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
On the basis of confirmation received by the Company, all Directors including Independent Directors 
appointed during the year have complied with the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company. Further, the 
Board also states that Independent Directors are person of person of integrity and has adequate experience 
to serve as an Independent Director of your Company.  
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BOARD EVALUATION  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance 
evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of 
its Committees.  
 
The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key 
areas: 

i. Attendance of Directors in Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings 
ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations 
iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance 
iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management 
v. Commitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interests 

 
The evaluation involves Self-Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board 
of Directors. A member of the Board does not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation. 
  
The Board found its members’ performance satisfactory.  
 
The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee 
members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 
meetings, etc. 
 
In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, Chairperson of 
the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive 
directors. Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the 
independent director being evaluated. 
 
REMUNERATION POLICY  
 
The Board had adopted Nomination and Remuneration Policy which sets out the guidelines regarding the 
nomination, remuneration and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and employees of the 
Company. 
 
The policy on Directors/Key Managerial Personnel’s appointment & remuneration is annexed herewith as 
“Annexure A”. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES, COMMITMENTS, IF ANY: 
 
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report. 
 
MEETINGS 
 
During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors met as and when business required. The 
intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Details of dates of meetings of the Board and its committee held during the financial year, indicating 
the number of meetings attended by each director and composition of committees is given in “Annexure 
B”. 
 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India (ICSI). 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations as approved by the Audit Committee and the Board. The Internal Financial Controls are 
adequate and working effectively.  
 
The scope and authority of the Internal Audit is laid down by the Audit Committee and accordingly the 
Internal Audit Plan is laid out. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Auditors reports 
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
 
The Internal Auditors monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the 
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of 
the Company. Based on the report of internal audit, process owners/concern department undertake 
corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit 
observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Company. 
 
OTHER DISLOSURE 
 
Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 is mentioned in “Annexure C”. 
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WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM 
 
The Company has adopted whistleblower policy to deal with genuine concerns of the employees and 
directors. All Employees and Directors are made aware of the whistleblower mechanism. The Company 
has established a system to ensure functioning of the said mechanism. During the year under review, the 
Company has not received any complaints under Whistle Blower Mechanism. 
 
 
ANNUAL RETURN 
 
The Annual Return as required under Section 92 and Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 shall be made available on the 
website at https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in, once it is filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS 
 
M/s. MKPS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 302014E), Statutory Auditors 
of the Company, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company a period of 5 years commencing 
from the conclusion of Annual General Meeting (AGM) held in the year 2019 till the conclusion of AGM 
to be held in the year 2024, as per the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013. They have 
confirmed their eligibility under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there 
under, to continue as statutory auditors for FY 2023-24. 
 
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by Statutory Auditors in their report for 
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
COST AUDITORS  
 
The Company has maintained the Cost records for the Financial Year 2022-23 as per the provisions of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (the Act). However, pursuant to 
the provisions of the Act, the Cost Records maintained by the Company in respect of its road construction 
activity were not required to be audited for FY 2022-23.  
 
For financial Year 2023-24, your Directors have appointed M/s. V R & Associates, Cost Accountant Firm 
(Membership No. 32936 & Firm Registration No. 000516)  to audit the cost records of the Company on 
remuneration amounting to Rs. 50,000/-. As required under the Act, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditor is required to be placed before the Members in a general meeting for their ratification. 
Accordingly, a resolution seeking Member’s ratification for the remuneration payable to M/s. V R & 
Associates, Cost Auditors is included in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s. MMJB & 
Associates LLP, Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2022-23.  
 
The Company, in order to comply with Section 203 of the Act, had been seeking competent candidates 
and it would continue to make reasonable efforts to recruit/depute competent persons so as to comply 
with applicable provisions. Further, the Company ensures to comply with the relevant regulations in time 
bound manner. 

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as “Annexure D”. 
 
FIXED DEPOSITS  
 
Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposit from public during the year under review.  
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were in compliance with 
the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, and necessary approvals 
have been obtained as required. 
 
The details of contract and arrangements entered with related parties, if any, are provided in form AOC 2, 
annexed herewith as “Annexure E”. For disclosure, transaction/s more than 10% of Annual turnover 
with related party are considered material. 
 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
 
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going 
concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key 
business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed 
through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.  
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  
 
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 
them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 
2013: 
 
a. that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 

the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures, if any; 

 
b. that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been 

selected and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 
and of the loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; 
 

c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

d. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
 
e. that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were 

adequate and operating effectively. 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  
 
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
The Company doesn’t have any employee on its roll, hence the provisions of Section 197(12) are not 
applicable. 
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
There were no earnings / expenditures in the foreign currency, during the year under consideration. 
 
Since the Company does not have any manufacturing facility, the other particulars required to be provided 
in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 are not applicable. 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the Ministry of Road Transport & Highways, National 
Highways Authority of India, Maharashtra State Road Development Corporation Ltd., Maharashtra 
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as well as collective contribution to the Company’s growth. 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
 
 
Sd/-        Sd/- 
Shilpa Todankar      Abhay Phatak 
Director       Director 
DIN: 08683910       DIN: 09519500 
Address: 408, Ganeshkunj CHS, Maheshwari Nagar, Address: B/106, Shashank CHS       
Kondivita, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400059   Mulund Vikroli Link Road, 

Bhandup Village, Bhandup (East) 
Mumbai - 400042 

 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 3, 2023 
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Annexure A 

Criteria for appointment of Board of Directors 
 
As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board shall have required number of independent 
directors of their Board. Further, as per SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, the 
majority Directors on the Board of the Company will be appointed by the Investment Manager in 
consultation with the Trustee of IRB Infrastructure Trust (“Trust”). 
 
The members of the Board of Directors are expected to possess the required expertise, skill and 
experience to effectively manage and direct the objectives of the Trust to attain its organizational & 
business goals. They are expected to be persons with vision, leadership qualities, proven competence and 
integrity, and with a strategic bent of mind. 
 
Each member of the Board of Directors is expected to ensure that his/ her personal interest does not run in 
conflict with the company’s interests. Moreover, each member is expected to use his/ her professional 
judgment to maintain both the substance and appearance of professionalism and objectivity. 
 
Remuneration Policy 
 
The Company doesn’t have any employee on its roll.  

 
Remuneration to Director/s, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 
 
The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director/s and Key Managerial 
Personnel, if any, shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 
under or any other enactment for the time being in force. The remuneration including incentives to Senior 
Management shall be in accordance with the Company’s policy. A performance appraisal be carried out 
annually and promotions or incentives or increment will be based on performance and the Company’s 
Policy. 
 
Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director 
 
The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration / compensation / commission as per 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made thereunder. The amount of sitting fees for 
attending Board and Committee meetings shall be fixed by Board of Directors, from time to time, subject 
to ceiling/ limits as provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other 
enactment for the time being in force. 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 



 

Annexure B 
 

The Details of dates of meetings of the Board & Committees and Composition of Committees of the 
Board of Directors 

 
As on 31.03.2023, the Board of Directors consists of the following members: 
 

1. Ms. Shilpa Todankar   Chairperson 
2. Mr. Abhay Phatak   Non-executive Director 
3. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape   Independent Director 
4. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan  Independent Director 

 
As on 31.03.2023, the Audit Committee consists of the following members –  

 
1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape- Chairperson 
2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar -Member 
3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan -Member 

 
As on 31.03.2023, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following members –  
 

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape- Chairperson 
2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar -Member 
3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan –Member 
 

As on 31.03.2023, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee consists of the following members –  
 

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape- Chairperson 
2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar -Member 
3. Mr. Abhay Phatak -Member 

 
As on 31.03.2023, the Risk Management Committee consists of the following members –  
 

1. Mrs. Shilpa Todankar - Chairperson 
2. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan -Member 
3. Mr. Abhay Phatak -Member 
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Number of Board/ Committee Meetings attended by the Directors 
 
Name of Director Board 

Meetings 
Audit 
Committee 

Nomination 
and 
Remuneration 
Committee 

Stakeholder 
Relationship 
Committee 

Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 13 7 3 1 2 
Mr. Chandrashekhar 
Kaptan  

11 6 2 N.A. 2 

Mr. Abhay Phatak 13 N.A. N.A. 1 2 
Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 13 7 3 1 N.A. 

 
Date of Board Meetings held during the year 
 
Sr. No. Date of the Meeting Board  Audit 

Committee 
N&R 
Committee  

Stakeholder 
Relationship 
Committee 

Risk 
Management 
Committee 

1.  04/05/2022 √ √ √ - - 
2.  01/08/2022 √ √ - - - 
3.  10/08/2021 √ - - - - 
4.  07/09/2022 √ - - - - 
5.  08/09/2022 √ - - - - 
6.  21/09/2022 √ - - - - 
7.  04/10/2022 √ - - - - 
8.  17/10/2022 √ √ - - - 
9.  10/11/2022 √ √ √ - - 
10.  01/12/2022 √ - √ - - 
11.  24/01/2023 √ √ - √ √ 
12.  20/03/2023 √ √ - - - 
13.  31/03/2023 √ √ - - √ 

 
 

 
  



 

Annexure C 
 

Disclosure as per Sexual Harrassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder, the Company has not received any 
complaint of sexual harassment during the year under review. 
 
The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee 
as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013. 
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Annexure D 

FORM NO. MR.3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2023 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
 To,  
The Members,  
Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  
Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  
Powai, Mumbai-400076  
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited (hereinafter called ‘the 
Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility:  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance of 
records based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing 
Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Auditing Standards requires that 
the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.  
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our 
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering from April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023 
(hereinafter called the ‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 
that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent and in the 
manner reporting made hereinafter:  
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We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provision of:  
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under;  
 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;  
 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; (Not Applicable 
to the Company during the Audit Period)  
 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);  
 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -  
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

  
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  
 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)  
 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)  
 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021;  
 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  
 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)  
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018. (‘Buy-
back Regulations’) (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)  
 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulation 2018. 
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 
(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 

2014; to the extent applicable to the listed entity;  
 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
 
(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder. (‘Listing Regulations')  
Further, the Company being High Value Debt Listed Entity, it is complying with the provisions of 
Listing Regulations on Comply and Explain basis and is in the process of full compliance  
 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines and Standards etc. made there under except that:  
 

1. the Company has appointed the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. 

November 10, 2022 and the Company Secretary w.e.f. December 01, 2022 pursuant to provision 

of Section 203 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 

remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The Company has informed that adequate 

fine has been paid with BSE limited (BSE) in this regard and it has not received further 

communication from BSE.  

 
2. the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Executive officer appointed under section 203 (3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, also holds the position of Key Managerial Personnel in other project 

companies of IRB Infrastructure Trust (the Holding Entity).  

 
3. in one of the instance, Company has filed intimation for Record Date under Regulation 60(2) of 

Listing Regulation in Delay. The Company has paid fine to BSE Limited.  

 
We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the 
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the 
Company has complied with the following law applicable specifically to the Company:  
 
• Indian Tolls Act, 1851  
• National Highway Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder  
 
 
 
We further report that  
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The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place that took place during the audit period were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (except few meetings were convened at a shorter notice 
for which necessary approvals obtained as per applicable provisions) and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.  
 
All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in 
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 
  
We further report that there are systems and processes in the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines. The Adequacy and efficacy of the 
same shall be read in the context of remarks made in this report.  
 
We Further report that during the audit period the Company has:  
 

a) Taken shareholders’ approval by way of Special Resolution in the Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting held on August 02, 2022 for increasing the limits under Section 180 (1) (a) and section 
180 (1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 upto ₹ 1,550 Crores and ₹ 2,500 Crores respectively.  

 
b) Issued and allotted 5,910 Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Listed, Rated, Non-convertible 

Debentures of ₹ 10 Lakh each in various tranches on private placement basis.  
 
 
Date: June 30, 2023 
Place: Mumbai  

For MMJB & Associates LLP  
Company Secretaries  
Deepti Joshi  
Designated Partner  
FCS: 8167  
CP: 8968  
PR: 2826/2022  
UDIN: F008167E000528093 
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‘Annexure A’  
To,  
Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  
Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  
Powai Mumbai City 400076  
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  

 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company.  
 
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  
 
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis.  

 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
company. 

 
 
 
Date: June 30, 2023 
Place: Mumbai  

 
 

For MMJB & Associates 
LLP  
Company Secretaries  
Deepti Joshi  
Designated Partner  
FCS: 8167  
CP: 8968  
PR: 2826/2022  
UDIN:F008167E000528093 
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Annexure E 

AOC-2 
 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil  
 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Nil 
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SOLAPUR YEDESHI TOLLWAY LIMITED 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT – FY 2022-23 

[Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015] 

 
A. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance based on certain key principles, including fairness 
and integrity, transparency and disclosure, accountability, equal treatment to all the stakeholders and social 
responsibility. Your Company practices Corporate Governance extends beyond corporate laws. Its 
fundamental objective is the institution of and adherence to systems and procedures, ensuring the 
commitment of the Board of Directors in managing the Company’s affairs in a transparent manner to 
maximize the long-term value of the stakeholders at large. 
 
Your Company has adopted an appropriate Corporate Governance framework to ensure timely and accurate 
disclosure on all material matters including the financial position, performance, ownership and governance 
of the Company. 
 
Your Company’s policies and practices relating to the Corporate Governance are discussed in the following 
sections: 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
   
(i) Board Membership Criteria 
 
The members of the Board of Directors accessed and observed that the Directors of your Company possess 
the required expertise, skill and experience to effectively manage and direct your Company to attain its 
organizational goals. They also have leadership qualities, proven competence and integrity, and with a 
strategic bent of mind. 
 
Each member of the Board of Directors of your Company have ensured that his/ her personal interest does 
not run in conflict with your Company’s interests and used their professional judgment to maintain both the 
substance and appearance of independence and objectivity. 
 
(ii) Composition of the Board 

 
The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum combination of Non-executive Directors and 
Independent Director to have a balanced Board Structure. The Board has 4 (Four) Directors, comprising of 
the Non-executive Directors and Independent Director, Ms. Shilpa Todankar and Mr. Abhay Phatak are 
Non-executive Directors, other 2 (Two) Non-executive Directors viz. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape and Mr. 
Chandrashekhar Kaptan are Independent Directors of the Company. The Chairperson of the Board of 



 

 

Directors of your Company is a Non-Independent Director. In the opinion of the Board, all Independent 
Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management. 
 
The composition of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2023 is as follows: 
 

Name of 
Director  

Category of 
Director  

Relationship 
with other 
Directors  

No. of 
Directors
hips in 
other 
companie
s 
including 
this listed 
entity*  

Number of 
membershi
ps in 
Audit/ 
Stakeholde
r 
Committee
(s) 
including 
this listed 
entity 
(Refer 
Regulation 
26(1) of 
Listing 
Regulation
s)** 

No of 
post of 
Chairper
son in 
Audit/ 
Stakehold
er 
Committe
e held in 
listed 
entities 
including 
this listed 
entity 
(Refer 
Regulatio
n 26(1) of 
Listing  
Regulatio
ns)** 

Directorships 
held in other 
listed entities# 

Ms. Shilpa 
Chandrashekhar
Todankar 
DIN: 08683910 

Non-executive 
Director  
 

None 9 10 None None 

Mr. Abhay 
Prabhakar 
Phatak 
DIN: 09519500 

Non-executive 
Director  
 

None 9 3 None None 

Mrs. Ranjana 
Vinay Paranjape 
DIN: 06646483 

Non-Executive 
- Independent  
Director 

None 4 5 4 None 



 

 

Mr. 
Chandrashekhar 
Shankarrao 
Kaptan 
DIN: 01643564 

Non-Executive 
- Independent  
Director 

None  9 10 1 IRB 
Infrastructure 
Developers 
Limited 

 

*Number of Directorship in other Companies excludes directorship in Section 8 Companies & Foreign 
Companies, if any. 
# While calculating directorships in listed entities, only directorships in equity listed companies have been 
considered in accordance with the explanation provided under Regulation 17A of SEBI Listing Regulations. 
** While calculating directorships in listed entities, only directorships in equity listed companies have 
been considered in accordance with the explanation provided under Regulation 17A of SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 
 
(iii) Board Meetings / Annual General Meeting  
 
For the period ended March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors of your Company met 13 (Thirteen) times on 
May 4, 2022, August 1, 2022, August 10, 2022, September 7, 2022, September 8, 2022, September 21, 
2022, October 4, 2022, October 17, 2022, November 10, 2022, December 1, 2022, January 24, 2023, March 
20, 2023 and March 31, 2023. 
 
Further, circular resolution was passed by the Board of Directors during the Financial Year 2022-23 on 
June 16, 2022 and November 14, 2022. 
 
The Annual General Meeting of the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022 was held on June 22, 2022. 
 
Details regarding the attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and the Annual General Meeting 
held during the period ended March 31, 2023, are provided in the following table: 
 

Director  No. of Board Meetings 
Attended 

Whether AGM Attended 
(Yes/No) 

Ms. Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 13 Yes 
Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 13 Yes 
Mrs. Ranjana Vinay Paranjape 13 Yes 
Mr. Chandrashekhar Shankarrao 
Kaptan 

11 No 

  
  



 

 

(iv) A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors  
 
Accordance with the company’s Corporate Governance philosophy, the Board has laid down criteria which 
guides selection of board member. The members of the Board of Directors of your Company are expected 
to possess the required expertise, skill and experience in the relevant sector to effectively manage and direct 
your Company to attain its organizational goals. 
 
The following is the list of core skills / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the 
context of the Company’s business and that the said skills are available within the Board Members. 
 

Name of the 
Director 

Business 
Leadership 

Financial 
Expertise 

Knowledge of 
Company’s 
Business 

Corporate 
Governance and 
Risk Management 

Ms. Shilpa 
Todankar 

√ √ √ √ 

Mr. Abhay 
Phatak 

√ √ √ √ 

Mrs. Ranjana 
Paranjape 

√ √ √ √ 

Mr. 
Chandrashekhar 
Kaptan 

√ √ √ √ 

 
 

(v) Membership Term 
 
At every Annual General Meeting, one-third of the Directors excluding Independent Directors, for the time 
being are liable to retire by rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number 
nearest to one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire by rotation at every Annual General 
Meeting shall be those who have been longest in office since their last appointment. However, as between 
persons who became Director on the same day and those who are to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree 
among themselves) be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-appointment. 
  
(vi) Code of Conduct 
 
Your Company’s Board of Directors has prescribed a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and the 
Company’s Senior Management. The Code of Conduct is available on your Company’s website 
www.irbinfratrust.co.in 
 



 

 

All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel of your Company have affirmed their 
compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2023. A declaration to this effect as 
signed by the Chief Executive Officer(s) is given below: 
 
This is to certify that, in line with the requirement of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, all the Directors of the Board and Senior Management 
Personnel have solemnly affirmed that to the best of their knowledge and belief, they have complied with 
the provisions of the Code of Conduct during the financial year 2022-23. 
 
Sd/-                                                            
Jai Prakash Nandi 
(CEO)                                                         
 
(vii) Meeting of Independent Directors: 
 
The separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company as per the requirements of Schedule IV of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, was held on January 24, 2023, without the attendance of Non-
Independent Directors and the members of the management. All the Independent Directors were present at 
the meeting. 
 
(viii) Performance Evaluation of Directors: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors and other Directors, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors 
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The evaluation framework for assessing the performance 
of Directors comprises of the following key areas: 
 

i. Attendance at Board & Committee Meetings. 
ii. Quality of contributions in deliberations. 
iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance. 
iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management. 
v. Commitment to Stakeholders interests. 

 
The evaluation involves Self- Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board 
of Directors. A member of the Board does not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation. 
 
B. Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors: 
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In case of appointment of new independent directors, the management provides the Familiarisation 
Programmes for all the Independent Directors as per the requirement of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The main objective of the Programme is to familiarize the 
Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the 
industry in which the Company operates, business model of the company, etc., through various 
programmes. During the year under review, no new independent Directors were appointed.  
 
C. BOARD COMMITTEES  
 
In compliance with both the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements under the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the applicable laws, your Company’s 
Board of Directors constituted the following Committees:  
 
i) Audit Committee;  
ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;  
iii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee;  
iv) Risk Management Committee; 
 
The Chairman of the Board, in consultation with the Company Secretary and the respective Chairman of 
these Committees, determines the frequency of the meetings of these Committees. The recommendations 
of the Committees are submitted to the Board for approval. 
 
The Board of Directors has also adopted the following policies in line with the requirement of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 for the 
effective and defined functioning of the respective Committees of the Board: 
 

a. Whistle Blower Policy; 
b. Remuneration Policy; 
c. Code for Corporate Disclosure; 
d. Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by 

Designated Persons; 
e. Policy on Related Party Transactions; 
f. Code of Conduct. 

 
Relevant policies are available on the website of the Company 
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/ 
  

(i) Audit Committee  
 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2023 consists of the 
following Members:  
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1) Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 
2) Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 
3) Ms. Shilpa Todankar  

 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. 
 
The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of the Audit Committee are in accordance with 
the Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:  
 
1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 

to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;  
 
2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 

company;  
 
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;  

 
4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:  
 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013  

 
b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same  

 
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management  

 
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings  

 
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements  

 
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions  

 
g. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report  

 
5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board 

for approval;  
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6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or 
qualified institutions placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up 
steps in this matter;  

 
7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;  

 
8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;  

 
9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  

 
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;  

 
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;  

 
12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems;  
 
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;  

 
14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;  

 
15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there 

is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and 
reporting the matter to the board;  

 
16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;  
 
17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;  
 
18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;  
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19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading 
the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate;  

 
20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.  

 
21. To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crores or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 
including existing loans / advances / investments; 

 
22. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, 

amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.  
 
The Company’s Audit Committee met 7 (Seven) times for the period ended March 31, 2023 viz. May 4, 
2022; August 1, 2022; October 17, 2022; November 10, 2022 and January 24, 2023, March 20, 2023, March 
31, 2023. 
 
The following table presents the details of attendance at the Audit Committee meetings held during the 
period ended March 31, 2023: 
 

Members  No. of Meetings Attended 
Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 7 
Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 6 
Ms. Shilpa Todankar 7 

 
 

(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) as on March 31, 2023 consists 
of the following members viz.: 
 
1) Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 
2) Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 
3) Ms. Shilpa Todankar 
 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3 (Three) time during the period ended March 31, 2023 
on May 4, 2022, November 10, 2022, December 1, 2022. 
 



 

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
meetings for the period ended March 31, 2023: 
 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 
Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 3 
Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 2 
Ms. Shilpa Todankar 3 

  
The brief terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:  
 
1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees;  

 
2.  For every appointment of an independent director, evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and 

experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and 
capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment 
as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of 
identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:  

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;  

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and  

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

3.   Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;  

4.   Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;  

5.  Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their 
appointment and removal.  

6. Review whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis 
of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.  

7. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 
 
Remuneration Policy 
 
The Board had adopted Nomination and Remuneration Policy which sets out the guidelines regarding the 
nomination, remuneration and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and employees of the 
Company. The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is annexed to Board’s Report. 



 

 

Remuneration paid to Non-executive Directors: 
 
The Non-executive Independent Directors of your Company are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees. 
Your Company pays sitting fees of Rs. 3,000/- per meeting to the Non-executive & Independent Directors 
for attending the meetings of the Committees and Board. 
 
Details of Remuneration for the period ended March 31, 2023 
 

Name of the Non-Executive Director  Sitting Fee (Amounts in Rupees)  
Mr. Chandrashekhar S. Kaptan 74,340 
Mrs. Ranjana Vinay Paranjape  81,420 
Ms. Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 88,500 
Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 53,100 

 
As per the disclosures received from the Directors, none of the Company’s Non-Executive Independent 
Directors hold any Equity Shares of the Company. Further, there are no pecuniary relationships or 
transactions of the Directors with the Company, except those disclosed in the Annual Report. 
 
None of the Directors are entitled to any benefit upon termination of their association with your Company. 
Further, the Company doesn’t have any Employee Stock Option scheme.  
 

(iii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee  
 
The Composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2023 consists of the 
following members viz.:  
  

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 
2. Mr. Abhay Phatak 
3. Ms. Shilpa Todankar 

 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 
 
The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee met 1 (One) time for the period ended March 31, 2023 on 
January 24, 2023. 
 
The following table presents the details of attendance at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings 
for the period ended March 31, 2023: 
 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 
Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 1 
Mr. Abhay Phatak 1 



 

 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 1 
 
Further, no complaints from securityholders were outstanding at the beginning of the year or received 
during the year under review, hence, there was no complaint to be disposed of during the said period or 
remaining unresolved at the end of the year under review.The brief terms of reference of the 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as follows:  
 
(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to 
transfer/transmission of shares/ securities, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 
Non-receipt of interest on debentures, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.  

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders/security holders.  

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services 
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends/ non-receipt of interest and ensuring timely receipt of interest/ dividend 
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders/ security holders of the company. 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 
 
The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web based complaints redress system. Your 
Company has been registered on SCORES and makes every effort to resolve all investor complaints 
received through SCORES or otherwise within the statutory time limit from the receipt of the complaint. 
 
During the year under review the company has not received any investor compliant. 
 

(iv) Risk Management Committee: 
 
The composition of the Risk Management Committee as on March 31, 2023 consists of the following 
members viz.: 
 

1. Ms. Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 
2. Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 
3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Shankarrao Kaptan 

 
The Risk Management Committee meeting was held on January 24, 2023 and March 31, 2023 during the 
period ended March 31, 2023.  
 
The following table presents the details of attendance at the Risk Management Committee meetings held 
for period ended March 31, 2023. 



 

 

 
Members No. of Meetings Attended 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 2 
Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 2 
Mr. Abhay Phatak 2 

 
The brief terms of reference of Risk Management Committee are as follows: 
 
1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include: 

 
a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Company, 

in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related 
risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.  

b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified 
risks.  

c) Business continuity plan. 
 

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate 
risks associated with the business of the Company; 
 

3. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the 
adequacy of risk management systems; 
 

4. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering 
the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity; 
 

5. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, 
recommendations and actions to be taken; 
 

6. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject 
to review by the Risk Management Committee. 

 
  



 

 

 
D. GENERAL BODY MEETING  
 
Annual General Meeting 
 
Details of your Company’s last three Annual General Meetings are presented in the following table: 
 

Nature of Meeting  Date & Time  Venue  Details of Special Resolutions 
passed  

Seventh Annual 
General Meeting 

September 11, 2020 
 

Registered Office of 
the Company: Off 
No-11th Floor/1101 
Hiranandani 
Knowledge Park, 
Technology Street, 
Hill Side Avenue, 
Powai, Mumbai – 
400076 

Approval for Increase in 
Borrowing Limits of the 
Company.  

Eighth Annual 
General Meeting 

July 20, 2021 
 

Through Video 
Conferencing 
(“VC”)/Other Audio 
Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) 

None 

Ninth Annual 
General Meeting 

June 22, 2022 
 

Through Video 
Conferencing 
(“VC”)/Other Audio 
Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) 

None 

 
 
Postal Ballot  
 
During the financial year 2022-23, no resolution were passed by the Company through Postal Ballot.  
 
E. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION  
 
1) The website https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/# consists of Disclosure/ filing w.r.t. to Company, 
which provides comprehensive information to the investors. 
 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/


 

 

2) Quarterly and Annual Financial results are published in leading English viz. The Free Press Journal etc. 
The said results are also made available on the Company’s website 
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/  
 
3) The Company’s Annual Report is e-mailed to the Members of the Company and other stakeholders’ 
entitled thereto. whose email addresses are available with the depositories as per section 136 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 53 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and shall also be made 
available on the Company’s website https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-
tollway-limited/  
 
4) presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: Nil 
 
 

F. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION  
1. Annual General Meeting                    
Date, Time and Venue  July 26. 2023, 2023, 1.10 p.m. through Video Conferencing 
2. Financial Year  Financial Year is April 1 to March 31 of the following year  
Quarterly results will be declared as per the following tentative schedule:  
Financial reporting for the quarter ending 
June 30, 2023 
Financial reporing for the half year ending 
September 30, 2023 
Financial reporting for the quarter ending 
December 31, 2023 
Financial reporting for the year ending March 
31, 2024 

First fortnight of August, 2023 
 
First fortnight of November, 2023 
 
First fortnight of February, 2024 
 
sixty days of close of Financial Year 

3. Dates of Book Closure  Not Applicable 
4. Record date for Dividend declared  - 
5. Interim/Final Dividend  - 

6. Interim/Final Dividend Payment Date  Not Applicable 
7. Listing on Stock Exchanges & Payment of 
Listing Fees  

Your Company’s Debt securities are listed on:  
BSE Limited  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 
Your Company has paid the annual listing fee to the 
exchange. 

8. Stock Code   (i) Scrip Code: 974215 / ISIN: INE441Q07011 
 (ii) Scrip Code: 974289 / ISIN: INE441Q07029 

9. Registrars and Transfer Agents  KFin Technologies Ltd. (Formerly known as KFin 
Technologies Private Ltd.) 
  

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

 

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli 
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad – 500 032.  
Tel.: 040 6716 1500; Fax: 040 67161500  
E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com 

10. Share Transfer System  Equity Shares of the Company are not listed on any Stock 
Exchange. Further, NCDs issued by the Company are in 
Demat form and hence, no physical debenture certificates 
were required to be delivered during the year under review. 
The Company obtains an annual certificate from Practicing 
Company Secretaries as per the requirement of regulation 
61(4) read with regulation 40(9) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and the same is filed with BSE Limited and is 
also available on the website of the Company i.e 
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-
yedeshi-tollway-limited/ 

11. Address for Correspondence  Ms Shilpa Todankar 
Director, 
Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park, 
Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 
400076 
Tel No. 022 66404220 
Fax No.: 022 28573441 
Email: irbinfrastructuretrust@irb.co.in  

12. Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity  During the year under review and as on the date of this 
Report, all securities issued by the Company were held in  
Demat form. 

14. Investor Complaints to be addressed to  Registrars and Transfer Agents or Ms. Shilpa Todankar, 
Director of the Company, at the addresses mentioned earlier.  

15. Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or 
any Convertible Instruments, Conversion 
Date and likely impact on equity  

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or 
any Convertible Instruments.  

16. Plant Locations  The Company does not have any manufacturing plant.  
17. Details of Suspension of Securities from 
trading if any 

Not Applicable. 

18. performance in comparison to broad-
based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL 
Index etc- 

Not Applicable  

19. Debenture Trustees (for privately placed  
debentures): 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 
Address : 202, Maker Tower, ‘E’, 
Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai – 400005 

mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

 

Email: corporate@sbicaptrustee.com 
Website: www.sbicaptrustee.com 
Contact No. 022 4302 5555 
Fax – 022 22040465 

20. Credit Rating: 
 
 

The details of credit rating are mentioned in the Board’s 
report of the Company. 

 
G. DISCLOSURES  
 
i) Related Party Transactions  
 
There have been no materially significant related party transactions, pecuniary transactions or relationships 
between your Company and the Directors, management, or relatives, except for those disclosed in the 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and as reported in the Directors' Report in terms of 
requirement under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy for the policy on related party 
transaction is available on your Company’s website 
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/# 
 
ii) Details of Non-Compliance, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) 
or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 
three years 
 
Other than the below mentioned details there has been no other non-compliance of any legal requirements 
nor have there been any strictures imposed by any Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on 
any matter related to Capital Markets during the last three years.  
 
 

a) BSE has levied a fine of ₹1,08,560/- inclusive of taxes the Company has paid ₹ 9,440inclusive of 
taxes and has given justification to BSE for not paying the balance amount. However, the Company 
has not received further response from BSE. Further, Company has appointed qualified Company 
Secretary w.e.f 1st December, 2022. 
 

b) BSE has levied a fine of ₹1,08,560/- inclusive of taxes. Since already having been complied, the 
Company has not paid any amount and has given justification to BSE for the same. The Company 
has not received further response from BSE.  
 

iii) Corporate Governance Report  
 

Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

 

 

iv) Commodity price risk or Foreign exchange risk and Hedging activities  

The Company had no exposure to Commodity Risks and Hedging activities during the financial year 
under review. 

v) Policy for determining ‘Material’ subsidiaries  

During the year under review and as on the date of this Report, the Company did not have any subsidiary. 

vi) Details of Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are 
interested  

During the year under review, the Company has neither advanced nor received any funds in the nature 
of loans to/from the firms/companies in which directors are interested. 

 
vii) Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism  
 
Your Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism (SPOC Policy) for directors, employees, vendors/ 
consultants to report genuine concerns and has widely circulated/ displayed for the information of the 
concern.   
 
We further confirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. 
 
viii) Compliance with Mandatory Requirements 
 
Your Company has complied with all the mandatory corporate governance requirements under the Listing  
Regulations. 
 
ix) Certificate on Corporate Governance 
 
The Practicing Company Secretary’s certificate, with respect to compliance with Regulation 17 to 27 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to Corporate 
Governance, has been annexed to the Boards Report and will be sent to the Stock Exchanges at the time of 
filing the Company’s Annual Report. 
 
x) Compliance Certificate 
 
 As per Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, a Compliance Certificate from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, on the 
Financial Statements and other matters of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, was 
placed before the Board. 
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xi) Risk Management 
 
The Company has laid down procedures to inform Board Members about the Risk Assessment and 
minimisation procedure, which are periodically reviewed by the Board. 
 
xii) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 
 
As disclosed in the Board’s Report of the Company, during the year under review, the Company has not 
received any complaint of sexual harassment. 
 
xiii) Fees paid to Statutory Auditors  
 
Total fees of Rs. 2,77,300/- for financial year 2022-23, for all services, was paid by the Company.  
 
xiv) Corporate Governance Requirements 
 
The Company has complied with Corporate Governance Requirements specified under Regulation 17 to 27 
and required disclosures under Regulation 62 is also available on your Company’s website: 
www.irbinfratrust.co.in 
 
 
xv) Certificate from Company Secretary in practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company 
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 
 
As per provisions of Listing Regulations, M/s. Kaushal Dalal & Associates, Company Secretaries, has 
issued a certificate confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred 
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Board/Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The Certificate is enclosed as Annexure A. 
 
xvi) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2023 

Sr. Description 
No.  

No. of Shares % of Shareholding 

1. IRB Infrastructure Trust* 98,249,994 99.99 
2. Mr. Dhananjay K. Joshi (Nominee of IRB 

Infrastructure Trust) 
1 Less Than 0.01 

3. Mr. Shailesh Joshi (Nominee of IRB 
Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

4. Mr. Mahesh Kavthekar (Nominee of IRB 1 Less Than 0.01 



 

 

Infrastructure Trust) 
5. Mr. Nikhil Maniar (Nominee of IRB 

Infrastructure Trust) 
1 Less Than 0.01 

6. Mrs. Arati Taskar (Nominee of IRB 
Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

7. Mrs. Anushree Joshi (Nominee of IRB 
Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

TOTAL  98,250,000 100.00 
*shares held by IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Registered Owner for and on behalf of IRB 
Infrastructure Trust, the Beneficial Owner. 
 
 
 
The Company has complied following Non-mandatory requirements as specified in Part E of 
Schedule II. 
 
 
A. Modified opinion(s) in audit report  

 
During the year under review, there is no audit qualification on the Company’s financial statements. 
The Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure regime of unmodified audit opinion. 
 

B. Reporting of internal auditor  
 
The Internal Auditor’s report to the Audit Committee of the Company. They participate in the meetings 
of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company and present their internal audit 
observations to the Audit Committee. 

 
 
  



 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  
Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  
Powai, Mumbai:- 400076  
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Solapur Yedeshi Tollway 
Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2023, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and 
Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“listing regulations”) 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 
representations made by the management, we certify that the Company, being a High Value Debt Listed 
Entity has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and 
Para C, D and E of Schedule V of Listing Regulations on Comply and Explain basis and is in the process 
of full compliance.  
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.  
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 30/06/2023 
Place: Mumbai 

 
 

For MMJB & Associates LLP 
Company Secretaries 

 
 

Deepti Joshi  
Designated Partner 

FCS: 8167 
CP: 8968 

PR: 2826/2022 
UDIN: F008167E000528115  
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Annexure A 
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
The Members of 
SOLAPUR YEDESHI TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  
Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  
Powai, Mumbai-400076 

 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 
of Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) having CIN: 
U45400MH2014PLC251983 and registered office at Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge 
Park, Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai-400076, produced before me by the 
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 
explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors 
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory 
Authorities.  

 
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 

Company 
1 Chandrashekhar Shankarrao 

Kaptan 
01643564 26/02/2020 

2 Ranjana Vinay Paranjape 06646483 06/10/2021 

3 Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 08683910 26/02/2020 

4 Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 09519500  09/03/2022 

 
  



 

 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my 
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 

For Kaushal Dalal & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

 
 
 

Kaushal Dalal 
Proprietor 

M. No: 7141 
CP No: 7512 

UDIN: F007141000525296 
 
 
Date: 30/06/2023                               
Place: Mumbai                                              

                                               

 
 
 



ml(PS & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 

The Members of Sola pur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
(Formerly known as Sola pur Yedeshi Tollway Private Limited) 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sola pur Yedeshi Tollway Limited formerly 

known as Sola pur Yedeshi Tollway Private Limited) (lithe Company "), which comprise the balance 

sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and 

statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in 

the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023 and its profit, total 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by ICAI and 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 

Key Audit Matters - SA 701 

Sr. Key Audit 
No. Matters Thought Process Remarks Reference 

�-----------~--~~------------------I----------------~--~--------~ 
1 Revenue a) Toll Collection Toll Collection for the Refer Note 3.04 

Recognition The income from Toll collection year ended 2022-23 
is recognised on the actual was Rs.129S.10 
collection of toll revenue, , net of million. 
revenue share paid to NHAI as 
per the Concession Agreement. 

b) Contract Revenue 
Contract revenue associated 
with the utility shifting incidental 

t ~AtfrYdO~AJ1fE£>~~Q~ r~~m;j ina 

Contract Revenue 
Collection for the year 
ended 2022-23 was 

Ci ,~) 

+91 22 4608 3939 I 4608 3940 mumbai@mkps.ln 

for the 
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2 Amortisation 
of Intangible 
Assets 

recognized as revenue by 
reference to the stage of 
completion of the projects at the 
balance sheet date. The stage of 
completion of project is 
determined by the proportion 
that contract cost incurred for 
work performed up to the 
balance sheet date bears to the 
estimated total contract costs. 
The Companies operations 
involve levying of GST on the 
construction work. Goods and 
Service tax is not received by the 
Company on its own account, 
rather, it is tax collected on value 
added to the commodity by the 
seller on behalf of the 
government. Accordingly, it is 
excluded from revenue. 

Amortisation 
The intangible assets which are 
recognised in the form of Right 
to charge users of the 
infrastructure asset are 
amortised by taking 
proportionate of actual revenue 
received for the year over Total 
Projected Revenue from project 
to Cost of Intangible assets. The 
estimation of total projection 
revenue requires significant 
assumption about expected 
growth rate and traffic projection 
for future. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting date. 

IIIKPS & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Companies 
Impairment charge on 
Intangible Assets 
represented Rs. 
168.97 million for the 
year 
31.03.2023 

ended 

Recognition in 
the Significant 
Accounting 
Policies 

Refer Note 3.06 
for the 
Companies 
Amortisation of 
Intangible Assets 
in the Significant 
Accounting 
Policies 

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 

provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 

in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 



IIKPS & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to 

Board's Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Business Responsibility Report and Report on 

Corporate Governance but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

The above-referred information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit 

report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 

fact. 

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 

we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate 

actions necessitated by the circumstances and the applicable laws and regulations.We have nothing 

to report on this. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of thefinancial statement that give 

a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concernand 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

~ whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 

~
/'/r ~.t." report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
• FRN " 
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guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's' use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor'sreport. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the IndAS Financial Statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in: 

i. planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 

ii. to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

_. C where applicable, related safeguards. 
,~ FRN j' 
~ 302014£ ,; , . 

':t:) ,', j\_ -;.. , 



InKPS & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatorv Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (lithe Order "), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act), we give in Annexure- I a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the statement of cash flows dealt 

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply, in material respect, with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 

on 3pt March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act. 

(d) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
Annexure- II. 

(e) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended we report that, according to 

the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the company, we report that the company has not paid or provided for managerial 
remuneration. 

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 

of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have an 

impact on its financial position; 

ii) Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material 

foreseeable losses on its long-term contracts that may require any 

provisioning. 

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the 

reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

iv) A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the company to or in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
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entities ("Intermediaries")' with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

B) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-c1ause(i) and 
(ii) of Rule 11 (e) as provided under (A) and (B) above contain any material 
misstatement. 

v) The company has neither declared nor paid any dividends during the 
year under audit. 

vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for 
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the 
Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under 
Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable 

for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. 
For MKPS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: -302014E 

CA Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.:046953 
UDIN: 23046953BGYNJQ7243 

Date: 27/04/2023 

Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors Report 
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of Sola pur Vedeshi Tollway Limited 
(formerly known as Solapur Vedeshl Tollway Private Limited) for the year ended March 31, 2023 

i) (a) (A) The company does not carry any property, plant and equipment during the year 
under audit. Hence, the reporting requirements under this sub-clause in not 
applicable. 
(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its 
intangible assets. 

(b) The company does not carry any property, plant and equipment including land 
during the year under audit. Hence, the reporting requirements under sub-clause(b), 
(c) and (d) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, we report that no proceedings have 
been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 
2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

ii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under 
sub-clause (a) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

iii) 

iv) 

v) 

vi) 

(b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or 
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence the 
reporting requirements under sub-clause (b) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order 
are not applicable. 

According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, we report that the company has not made any 
investments in, nor provided any guarantee or security nor granted any loans or advances 
in the nature of loans, to companies, firms, limited liability Partnerships or any other 
parties. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are 
not applicable. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is interested 
to which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply other than those stated at para (iii) 
above. Further, based on the information and explanations given to us, being an 
infrastructure company, the provisions of section 186 of the Act to the extent of loans, 
guarantees and securities granted are not applicable to the company. Hence, the reporting 
requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the directives 
issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
rules framed thereunder are not applicable. 

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such 
records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been 
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made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination oftherecords 
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

vii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generally 
regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and 
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, and any other 
material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. 

viii) 

ix) 

x) 

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, and any other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory 
dues referred to in clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute except in respect of an income tax demand (net) of Rs. 523.20 lacs 
received for the Asst. Year 2017-18 in respect of which appeal has been filed withthe 
CIT(Appeals), Income Tax. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(t) 

(a) 

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the books 
of accounts and records examined by us, in our opinion, the company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of 
interest thereon to any lender. 
According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented 
to us by the management, the company has not been declared as a willful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
no fresh term loans have been taken during the year. 
On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our 
opinion funds raised on short term basis have not been prima-facie used for 
long term purposes as at the reporting date. 
The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and 
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (e) of clause (ix) of 
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 
The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and 
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (f) of clause (ix) of 
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our 

examination of the books of accounts and other records, we report that the 
company has not raised any moneys raised by way of initial public offeror 
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the 
reporting requirements under sub-clause (a) of clause (x) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on 
our examination of the books of accounts and other records, we report that 
the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or debentures. Hence, the compliance to the provision of section 42 and 
section 62 of the Act are not applicable. 
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xi) (a) Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the 

xii) 

xii i) 

xiv) 

true and fair view of the financial statements and as per the information and 
explanations given to us by the management, we report that we have neither 
come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the company by its 
officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the management. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and till the 
date of this report. 

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us, no whistle 
blower complaints have been received during the year and upto the date of 
this report. 

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under 
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered 
into by the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 
of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

a) 

b) 

In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business. 

We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued 
to the company, in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures. 

xv) As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them and 
hence the prOVisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the company. I 

xvi) a) 

b) 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India, 1934. Hence, the reporting requirements under sub- clause (a), 
(b) and (c) of clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 
According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, 
in our opinion, there is no Core Investment Company as part of the Group. 
Hence, the reporting requirements under sub-clause (d) of clause (xvi) of 
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

xvii) The company has incurred cash profit of Rs. 25.28 Million during the current year & cash 
loss of Rs. 360.94 Million in the immediately preceding year respectively. 

xviii) There has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year. 

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 
based on our examination ofthe evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing 
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material exists as 
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on the date of the audit report indicating that the company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the company for the year 
under audit and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a) & (b) of clause 
(xx) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

For MKPS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: -302014E 
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Annexure - II to the Independent Auditors Report 
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of Sola pur Yedeshl Tollway Limited 
(formerly known as Sola pur Yedeshi Tollway Private Limited) for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Solapur Yedeshi Tollway 
Limited (formerly known as Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Private Limited) ("the Company") as of March 31, 
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opInion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on. the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company conSidering the essential components of internalcontrol stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For MKPS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: -302014E 

CA Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.:046953 
UDIN: 23046953BGYNJQ7243 
Date: 27/04/2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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Sola pur Yedcshi Tollway Limited 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Other intangible assets 

Cu rren t assets 
Financial assets 
i) Investments 
ii) Trade receivables 
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 
v) Other financial assets 

Current tax assets (net) 
Other current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Subordinate debt 
Other equity 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
i) Borrowings 

Provisions 

Current liabilities 

Note No. 

4 

5 
5.1 
5.2 
5.3 
5.4 
5.5 
6 
7 

8 
9 
10 

11 
11.1 
12 

Financial liabilities 13 
i) Borrowings 13.1 
Ii) Trade paynbles 13.2 

a) total ou tstanding dues of micro enterprises and small cnlcrprises 
b) lOla! OUI5tandinll dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

iii) Other financial liabilities 13.3 
Other liabilities 14 

Total liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Summllry ofsignilicanl accounting policies 3 
']lIe accompanying notes are an integral part oflhe financial statements. 

As at 
March 3 I, 2023 

13. 155 57 
13.155.57 

72.82 
29.37 
24.86 

782.00 
24.42 
4.42 
0.04 

937.93 

14,093.50 

982.50 
4,423.70 

(2,283.71 ) 
3,122.49 

9,829.36 
198.95 

10,028.31 

654.72 

226.50 
57.90 

3.58 
9~2.7U 

10,971.01 

14.093.50 ' 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Sola pur Yedesbi Tollway Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
Finn's Regd. NO.3020 1 

Partner 
Membership NO.0469S3 

Place: Mwnbai 
Date: 27/0412023 

CIN : U45400MH2014PTC251983 

~ 
Dlrcctor 
DIN: 09519500 

Place: Mwnbai 
Date : 27/0412023 

Uevendra Ranka 
Chief Financial Officer 

; ; ~~c: Mumbai 
Date: 27/04/2023 

Place: Mwnbai 
Date : 27/04/2023 

( f in Millions) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

1 3.324 . 5~ 

13,324.54 

37.62 
29.37 
19.39 

206.79 
21.74 

1.25 
8.32 

324.50 

13,649.04 

982.50 
4,423.70 

(2,058.26) 
3,347.94 

9)93.07 
124.34 

9,3 17.41 

'674.95 

224.13 
82.49 

2.13 
983.69 

10,301.10 

13,649.04 

JiP~ 
C ie · E.~ecutuve Officer 

Place: Murnbai 
Date: 27/04/2023 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Income 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 
TOTAL INCOME 

Expenses 
Road work and site expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Other expenses 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

Profit / (loss) before tax 

Tax expenses 
Current tax 
TOTAL TAX EXPENSES 

ProfiU(loss) for the year 

Other comprehensive income 
Item that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss: 
ltc-measurement gainsl (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of taxes) 
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods 

Otber comprebensive Income/(Ioss) for tbe year (net oftn) 
Total comprebensive Income for tbe year 

Earnings per equity sbare (of Rs. 10 eacb) 
Basic 
Diluted 

Summary of significant accounllng poliCies 
"11!e accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For M K P S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regd. NO.302014E 

CA. Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.046953 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 27/04/2023 

Note No. 

15 
16 

17 
18 
19 
20 

21 

22 

3 

Year ended March 
31,2023 

1,281.67 
31.01 

1,312.68 

244.17 
1,083.45 

168.97 
41.55 

1,538.14 

(225.441 

(225.44) 

(225.44) 

(2.29) 
(2.29) 

( ~ in Millions) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

856.05 
11.70 

867.75 

261.71 
1,029.01 

116.74 
4.15 

1,411.61 

(543.85) 

(0.16) 
(0.16) 

(543.69) 

(543.69) 

(5.53) 
(5.53) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Sola pur Yedesbi Tollway Limited 
CIN : U45400MH2014PTC251983 

~ 
AbllllY Pbatak 
Director 
DIN: 09519500 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 27/0412023 

~~ 
Devendra Ranka 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 27/04/2023 

Director 
DIN: 08683910 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 27/04/2023 

~ 
q rllka5~~ 
lb' fExeculuve Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 27/04/2023 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital: 

Equity shares of~ 10 each issued. subscribed and fully paid 

Opening balance 
Issue of share capital 
Closing balance 

B. Subordinate debt: 
Opening balance 
Addition during the period! year 
Closing balance 

C .Other Equity : 
Retained earnings 
Opening balance 
Profitl(loss) for the period! year 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defmed benefit plans 
At the end of the year 

Summary ofSignilicant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For M K P S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: 21/0412023 

3 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

982.50 

982.50 

4,423 .70 

4.423.70 

(2,058.25) 
(225.44) 

(2,283.71) 

( ~ in Millions) 
As at 

March 31. 2022 

982.50 

982.50 

4,423 .70 

4,423.70 

(1,514.56) 
(543.69) 

(2.058.25) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
CIN: U45400MH2014PTC251983 

~ 
Director 
DIN: 09519500 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21/0412023 

Devendra Ranka 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: 21/0412023 

~~, 
Director 
DIN: 08683910 

P1lice : Mumbai 
Date : 27/0412023 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 27/0412023 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit Before Tax 
Adjustments: 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Resurfacing expenses 
Finance costs 
Fair Value gain on Mutual Funds 
(Gain) I loss on sale of Investment 
Interest Income on 
• Bank deposits 
- Others 

Particulars 

Operating prolif/(Ioss) before worldng capital changes 
Movement in working capital: 
Decrease/(increase) in Trade receivables 
Decrease/(increase) in other fmancial assets 
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 
Increase/( decrease) in other fmancialliabilities 
Increasc/( decrease) in other liabilities 
Cash generated from/eused in) operations 
Direct (axes paid (net ofrcfunds) 
Net cash flows from/(uscd in) operating slctivitic~ (A) 

B. Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of non-current investmentslInvestment in others 
Proceeds from salel (purchase) of current investments (net) 
Bank deposits placed (having original maturity of more than three months) 
Interest roceived 
Net cash nows from/(uscd in) investing activities (8) 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceeds I (repayment) ofloan from banks and fmancial institution 
Repayment ofloan from issue of NOD • Convertible Debentures 
Transaction Cost towards issue of Non-Convertible Debentures 
Proceeds I (repayment) of short term loan 
Finance cost paid 
Net casb flows i.·orn/(used in) financing activities (C ) 
Net incrcasc/(decre1lse) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B~'C) 
Cash and cash equivalents lit the beginning ofUlc period 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the (leriod (refer note no 5.3) 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 
Balances with scheduled banks 

- On Current Account 
• On Escrow Account 

Total Cash and cash equivalents (refer note no 5.3) 

Year ended March 
31,2023 

(225.44) 

168.97 
74.61 

1,083.45 
(0.21) 
(3 .74) 

(26.81) 
(0.20) 

],070.63 

(2.67) 
8.28 
2.38 

(24.58) 
1.45 

1,055.49 
(3.17) 

1.052.32 

(31.26) 
(575.21) 

27.01 
(579.46) 

(5,205.80) 
5,910.00 

(80.64) 

(1,090.95) 
(467.39) 

5.47 
19.39 
24.86 

1.01 

4.35 
19.50 
24.86 

( ~ in Millions) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

(543 .85) 

116:74 
66.17 

1,029.00 
1.28 

(2.21) 

(9.34) 
(1.39) 

656.40 

(29.37) 
9.16 
7.55 

17.08 
22.35 
(4.61) 

678.55 
4.40 

682.95 

0.93 
239.71 

(7.37) 
9.17 

242.44 

(111.88) 

4.00 
(81 6.66) 
(924.54) 

0.85 
18.55 
19.39 

1.02 

2.53 
15.84 
19.39 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with Ind AS 7 
Opening balances 
Long tenn borrowings 
Short tenn borrowings 

Movements 
Long tenn borrowings 
Short tenn borrowings 

Closing balances 
Long tenn borrowings 
Short tenn borrowings 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial statements. 

Notes: 
1. All figures in bracket are outflow. 

3 

Year ended March 
31,2023 

9,193.07 
674.95 

636.29 
(20.23) 

9,829.36 
654.72 

( f in Millions) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

9,241:30 
522.24 

(48.24) 
152.70 

9,193.07 
674.95 

2. Taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and fmancing activities. 
3. The cash flow statement has been prepared under Indirect Method as per Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". 

As per our report of even date 
For M K P S & Associates 

CA. Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.046953 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 27/04/2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Solapur Yedesbi Tollway Limited 
CIN: U45400MH20 14PTC25 1983 

~ 
Ablaay Pbatak 
Director 
DIN: 09519500 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 27/04/2023 

Devendra Ranka 
CbiefFinancial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 27/0412023 

Director 
DIN: 08683910 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 27/04/2023 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 27/04/2023 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financi~1 StAtements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Notel: orl'ornle Information 
Solapur Yedcshi Tollway Limited ('the Company') is domiciled in India The COlllllnny bas been ow rded the proJCCI for 4-lnning of Solapur I Yedllshi 
sec lion of NT 1·2 I I from Kill 0.000 to Km 100.00 (design length 98.717 Km) illihe Slnlc of MnJllll"lIshtra. The Project hllll bccn nwarded under Notio"," 
Highways Development Program (NHDP) Phase IV and is to be executed as BOT (ToU) on n Design, Bufld, Finance. Operntc nnd Transfer (DaFOT) bltsis 

The Company has been converted to Public Limited Company from Private Limited Company with effect from 13th November, 2019. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 27th April 2023. 

The registered office is located at 1101, 11th Floor, Hiranandani Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Opp Hiranandani Hospital, Powai, Mumbai - 400076. 

IRE Infrastructure Trust [an Infrastructure Investment Trust registered with Sccurities and Exchange Board of India under Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014] holds through its Trustee IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited and its nominees 100% stake in the 
Company 

Note 2 : BASl, of prepA ration 
The fi nancial SII\lemc\lls of the Company have been prepared in (lccordanoe with Indian Accounting Slnndards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indi1lD 
Aocounting Standnrds) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (tile 'Aot') nnd other rCIOYllnl provisions or the Act. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also tile Company's funcl"IOnal ourrency IIl1d all volues urc .ounded to the nearest 
millions, except when otherwise indicated. 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for cerlnin financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments) which have been measured at fair value. 

Note 3 : Summary oC significant accounting policies 

3.01 Current versus non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
- Held primari ly fo r the purpoSe oftmding 
- Expected 10 be realised wi thin twelve months after til(: reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash cquiVtllcnt unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
- It is held primarily for the purpose of lrad i ng 
- It is due to be settled within twelve mOllths after the reporting period, or 
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
The Company olassifies all other liabilities as nOn-OllfTent. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified os lIon-currcnt assets and liabilities. 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 
twelve months as its oPerating cycle. 

3.02 Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer n liability in an orderly tmnsaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assel or transfer the liability takes place either: 

> In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
> In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Comp1lDY. 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its 
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as 
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair Vtllue measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred 
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at 
the end of each reporting period. 

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted 
financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. 

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as 
per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information 
in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is 
reasonable. 

On an interim basis, the Management present the valuation results to the Audit Committee and the Company's independent auditors. This includes a 
discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the 
asset or liabilitY and the level of the fair value hierarchy as ,explained above. 
This note summaries accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 

3.03 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumption 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of revenue, expenses , assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the canying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years. 

Estimates and assumptions 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on im ongoing basis . Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates 
are revised and future periods are affected. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the canying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions 
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company: Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions when they occur. 

Material Estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are: 
Fair value measurement of financial instruments (refer note 25) 

Current I Deferred tax expense (refer note 21) 

Revenue recognition based on percentage of completion (refer note 15) 

3.04 Revenue recognition 
The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, with effect from 01 April 2018. The Company has applied the following 
accounting policy for revenue recognition: 

Revenue from contracts with customers: 
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115: 
Step 1. Identity the contract(s) with a customer. A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and 
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met. 

Step 2. Identity the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service 
to the customer. 

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the 
Company will allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for satistying each performance obligation. 

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. 

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met: 
I . The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the Company performs; or 
2. The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or 
3. The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed to date. 



Sola pur Ycdc hi Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial tatemcnts for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note" : Other Intangible assets 
( ~ in Millions) 

Toll Collection Rights 

Particulars As at March As at March 
31,2023 31,2022 

Gross block 
Opening balance 13,748.55 13,748.55 
Additions - -
Less: Deductions/adjustments . . 
Closing balance 13,748.55 13,748.55 

Depreciation / Amortisation 
Opening balance 424.01 307.27 
Additions 168.97 116.74 
Less: Deductions/adjust.ments - . 
Closing balance 592.98 424.01 

Net block 13,155.57 13,324.54 

Tangible & Intangible assets are subject to first charge to secured long tenn borrowing from the lenders. 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note 5 : Financial assets (current) 

5.1 Investments 
Investments in Mutual Funds (quoted) (FVTPL) 

5.2 Trade receivable 
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 

- others 

5.3 Cash and cash equivalent 
Cash on hand 
Balances with banks: 
- In current accounts 
- In escrow accounts 

5.4 Otber bank balances 
Debt service reserve account with banks learmarked balance 

- Maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 month 

Major maintainance reserve account with banks I earmarked balance 
- Maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 month 
Deposits wilh bao l<s 

- Original maturity more than 3 but less than 12 months 
- Maturity more than 12 months 

As at March 
31,2023 

72.82 

72.82 

29.37 
29.37 

1.01 

4.35 
19.50 
24.86 

260.00 

520.00 

2.00 

782.00 

( ~ in Millions) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

37.62 

37.62 

29.37 
29.37 

1.02 

2.53 
15.84 
19.39 

168.13 

36.66 
2.00 

206.79 
Debt service reserve account! major maintenance reserve account and trust, retention and other escrow accounts. 

5.5 

Bank deposits are marked lien I pledged against the non current secured loan as per term loan agreement with the lender, further the 
lenders have first charge on trust, retention and other escrow accounts. 

Other financial assets 
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 3.13 4.81 
Interest receivable from others 1.46 
- from NHAI & others 9.49 11.07 
Other receivable 
- other parties 5.24 3.90 
Balance with government authorities 6.06 
Security and other deposits 0.50 0.50 

24.42 21.74 

Note 6 : Current tax assets (net) 

Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) 4.42 1.25 
4.42 1.25 

Note 7 : Other current assets 

8.27 
0.04 0.05 
0.04 8.32 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note 11 : Non-current financial liabilities 

11.1 Borrowings 
Secured 
Term loans 
Indian rupee loan from banks 
Less: Current maturities 
Sub total (a) 

Indian rupee loan from financial institutions 
Less: Current maturities 
Sub total (b) 
Non-convertible debentures - Others 
Less: Unamortised transaction cost 
Sub total (c) 

Unsecured 
Loan from related parties 
- interest bearing 
Sub total (d ) 
Total (a+b+c+d) 
Terms & condition 
a.Secured 

As at March 
31,2023 

5,910.00 
(80.64) 

5,829.36 

4,000.00 
4,000.00 
9,829.36 

( ~ in Millions) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

4,073.52 
(9.93) 

4,063.59 

1,132.28 
(2.80) 

1,129.48 

4,000.00 
4,000.00 
9,193.07 

i) Secured by first charge 011 (he movable I immovable assel by way of mortgage I hypothecation, fmt charge 011 aU iruangible assets, present 
and future, save and except the project assets and the Cirsl charge on borrower's account, including but not Ijmitcd to the Escrow Account and 
lhe Sub-Accounts (or ilQ¥ oIICCOW11 in substitut.ion thereof). funds deposited from time to time (including reserves), permjtted investments or 
other securities representing all amounts credited to the Escrow Account and receivables to the extent of the waterfall of priority of payments to 
the lenders under Escrow Account agreement. 

ii) Term loans have been refinanced during the (jnancial year 2022-23 and Debentures have been issued 
iii) Pledge of shares held by the major shareholder aggregating 51 % of the total paid-up equity share capital of the Company. 

iv) First charge on the Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve Account and any other reserves and other bank accounts of the Company. 

iv) Rate of interest on indian rupee loan from banks and fmancial inst.itutions is MCLR Rate + Spread, term loaq. repayable in 195 monthly 
SlrUctured msta'lments w.c.f.April 01, 2018 as specified in the repayment schedule of the term loan agreement. 

v) Rate of interest on NCD from fmanoial institution is Coupon Rate, NCD redemption, Tranche 1 & Tranche 2 - Series 2A in September 2027 
& Series 2B t.o be repaid in 24 installments from November 2027. 

b. Unsecured 

The loan from related parties shall be repayable in untreated installments as per terms of the agreements. 

Note 12 : Long-term provisions 
Major maintenance expenses 

The movement in provision for resurfacing expenses is as follows:­
At the begirming of the year 
Add:- Provision during the year 
Less:- Utilised during the year 
At the end of the year 

The above provisions are based on current best estimation of expenses that may 
be required to fulJil1hc resudbsing obligation as per tlle service concession 
agreement with the National Highways Authority oflndia. The actual expense 
incurred at the end of the period Illay vary from the above. No reimbursemen t are 
expected from any sources against the above obligation. 

198.95 124.34 
198.95 124.34 

124.34 58.18 
74.61 66.16 

198.95 124.34 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note: 8 : Equity 

A) Equity share capital 
a.Authorised Share Capital 
AI the beginning of the year 

Increase during the year 

At the end of the year 

h.lssued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 
EqulCy share ofRs. 10 each issued, subscrIbed and fully paid up 

At the beginning of the year 

Increase during the year 

At the end of Ihe year 

c. Terms 1 rights attached to equity sbares 

As at 
M,II'e," 31,2023 

982.50 

982.50 

982.50 

982.50 

( '{ in Millions) 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

982.50 

982.50 

982.50 

982.50 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ~ 101- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of 
the Company, the holder~ of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in 
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

d. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of sbare C81)il;;,":..:.I: _____________________________ _ 

Equity sbares of f 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid 

At the beginning of the year 
Increase during the year 
At the end of the year 

e. Details of the holding more than 5% shares in the Company 
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company as below: 

From fellow subsidiary and holding 
IRB Infrastructure Trust, (holding company) 

Nole 9: Sul,ordlnml. Debt 

Subordinate debt 
At the beginning of the year 
Increase/(decrease) during the year 
At the end of the yea r 

Nole :10 Olber Eqully 

Attributable to the eqully holden 
1. Retained earnings 

Atilie~ofilieyear 

Profit/(Loss) for ilie year 

Total retained eamlngs 

2. Olber comprehensive Income/(loss) 
Re-measurement gains! (loues) on derIDed benefit plans 

Altheb~eoflbeyear 

Increasel{decresse) during ilie year 

At the end of Ibe year 

Total Olber EquiCy 

~~ ~~ 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

No. of shares ( f in mIllions) 
9,82,50,000 982.50 

9,82,50,000 982.50 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

No. of shares % holding 

9,82,50,000 100.00% 

9,82,50,000 100.00% 

( '{ in Millions) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

4,423.70 4,423.70 

4.423.70 4,423.70 

( f in Millions) 
Asat ~at 

March 31, l023 March 31, 2022 

(2,058.25) (1,514.56) 
(225.44) (543.69) 

(2,283.71) (2,058.25) 

(2,283.71) (2,058.25) 

No. ofsbnre ( ~ in millions) 
9,82,50,000 982.50 

9,82,50,000 982.50 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

No. of shares % holding 

9,82,50,000 100.00% 

9,82,50,000 100.00% 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note 13 : Current financial liabilities 
13.1 Borrowings 

Unsecured loan 
- From related parties 
- Interest free 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 
- Indian rupee loan from banks 
- Indian rupee loan from financial institutions 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Total 

As at March 
31,2023 

114.82 

539.90 
654.72 

The unsecured loan taken from holding company which is repayable on demand and are interest free. 

13.2 Trade Payables 
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
b )total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 
- related parties 
- others 
Total 

13.3 Othel' financial liabilities 
Due to directors 
Retention money payable 
- re I ated parti es 
- others 
Deposit (POS) 
Revenue share payable to NHAI 
Other payables 
- related parties 

Note 14 : Other current liabilities 
Advance from customer 
- others 
Statutory dues payable (including PF, TDS, GST & others) 

219.69 
6.81 

226.50 

0.08 

6.44 
24.03 

0.11 
22.34 

4.89 
57.90 

2.03 
1.55 
3.58 

( ~ in Millions) 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

114.82 

9.93 
2.80 

547.40 
674.95 

222.62 
1.51 

224.13 

0.05 

2.18 
24.03 

0.10 
27.13 

29.00 
82.49 

2.03 
0.10 
2.13 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

Note 15 : Revenue From Operations 
Operating income 
Contract Revenue (road construction) 
Income from toll collection 
Revenue share to NHAI- Fastag 

a . Disaggregated revenue information 
Income from services (Revenue from contracts with Customers) 
Income from toll collection 
Contract Revenue (from NlW - Utility shifting) 
Revenue share to NlW- Fastag 

b. Performance obligation 
Income from toll collection 

Year ended March 31, 
2023 

3.32 
1,295.10 

( 16.75) 
1,281.67 

1,295.10 
3.32 

(16.75) 
1,281.67 

The perfonnance obligation in service of toll collection is recorded as per rates notified by NlW . 
Contract Revenue 

( ~ in Millions) 

As at 
March 31,2022 

38.42 
839.58 
(21.95) 
856.05 

839.58 
38.42 

(21.95) 
856.05 

The perfonnance obligation under contractual agreements is due on completion of work as per tenns ·of contracts. 

Note 16 : Other income 
Bank deposits 26.81 9.34 
Others 0.20 D9 
Gain on sale of investment 3.74 2.21 
Other non-operative income 0.05 0.05 
Fair value gain on investments 0.21 (1.28) 

31.01 11.70 

Note 17 : Road work and site expenses 
Contract expenses 3.32 38.42 
Operation and maintenance expenses 230.65 221.28 
Site and other direct expenses 0.00 
Technical consultancy & supervision charges 10.20 2.01 

244.17 261.72 



Solapul' Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023 

Note 18 : Finance costs 
Interest expense 
- Term loan from bank / financial institutions 
- Debentures 
- on unsecured loan from related parties 
- Unwinding of discount on provision ofMMR 
Amorisation of transaction cost 
Other finance costs 

Note 19 : Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Amortisation on intangible assets 

Note 20 : Other expenses 
Rent 
Rates & taxes 
Directors sitting fees 
Legal and professional fees 
Payment to auditor (refer note below) 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Bank charges 
Insurance 

Payment to auditor (including service tax I GST) 
As auditors: 
- Statutory audit fees 
- Limited review fees 
In other capacity: 
- Other services (certification fees) 

Note 21 : Tax expenses 

Total tax expenses 

Year ended March 31, 
2023 

212.66 
263.10 
560.00 

13.86 
7.15 

26.68 
1,083.45 

168.97 
168.97 

0.02 
27.47 

0.30 
13.20 
0.28 
0.15 
0.02 
0.11 

41.55 

0.07 
0.11 

0.10 
0.28 

( ~ in Millions) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

459.70 

560.00 

6.49 

2.82 
1,029.01 

116.74 
116.74 

0.03 
1.34 
0.15 
1.79 
0.18 
0.25 
0.24 
0.17 
4:15 

0.07 
0.11 

(0.01) 
0.18 

(0.16) 
(0.16) 



Solapur Yrdeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes 10 Financial Statements (or the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note 22 : Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS amounts 8re calc::ulaled by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year 

Diluted liPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding duting the period plus the weighted average 

number of Equity shares that would be issued On conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares 

The following reHeels the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings 

Weighled average number of Equity shares for basic EPS· 
Face value per share (in Rs.) 

Basic earning per share (in Rs.) 

Year ended March 31, 
2023 

(22544) 

9,82.50,000 
10.00 
(2.29) 

( {in Millimu) 

As at 

March 31. 2022 

(543.69) 

9,82,50,000 
10.00 
(553) 

• There have been no other transaC1ions involving Equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date Ind the date of authorisation of these financial statements. 

Note 23 : Components or Other Comprehensive Income 

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equily is shown below: 

Retained Earnings 

Re-measuremcnt gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 

Note 24 : n.t.oih .rd" .. ,o micro and ,no,lItnterprisu II per MSMED Acl. 2006 

Year ended Marcb 31, 
2023 

( ~ in }.llillions) 

As.t 
March 31. 2022 

Under the Micro. SmAil and Medium Enlerpri, •• DO\'olopmonl Act, 2006 ('MSMED') which camo ioto (0= frOID 2 Octob« 2006, <erlaln diselln",es .ro required to be I1ll!do retnllng 10 MJcro, Small And 
Medium ' ''lerprm. 0" Ih. baslJ of tho Infom,.li." Ind r""",rll. I vD.il.blo with lb. DI.n"llomen!, Ihere or., no QUltl,ndlng dueo to ,ho Micro Ind Small enlerprioes u dolin.d in Iho "flero. Small Medium 
tlnterprisea Developmenl Act, 2Q06 U ICI oUl ln the following dIJd.,ures. 
The dt,c1oruro l" respect of the amOl'"t pl\Y,blo 10 Ot1terj"'''~ which h.ve provided goodl "Id ..,-vicel 10 the eompony .nd which q~a ll fy under lhe d.r.nltlon of micro and ,moll enlerprises, •• ddined 
und« Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise. DcYclal'mcnt Act, 2006 has ~n m.de in tl lC Ind AS finonei.1 .Ialemenl U It Man:h 31. 2023 based 011 Ih. IlIformo,lion rcc.oived ond lv.ilable wilh the 
company. 

r.rtlculan 
Princlpol amount remaining unpaid 10 any supplier as al U,C period end 

Interest dUe UloreoD 
Am~uII' orim.,est pD.id by the Compony in lenns of ,",,';011 16 oflhe MSMEO .... t. 2006 (27 of20(6), 
along with th. amoUnt of the plym.nt made 10 lhe supp~er beyond the apjlolnted day during each 
oceoulll lnll yoar/period 
AmPU"t pn"tereol due and payable for the period of deloy In nlliklng payment (which have been paid bUI 
b.y~"d the appointed day during the year) bUI without adding tho interest specified under the MSMED, 
2006 

Amounl of inleresl accrued and remaining unpaid al Ihe end of the accounting year/period 

The amount of IUllh.r inlerest _ll1lng due and payable eVl:n in Ihe imuedl"s years, unlil .uch dale 
when the interC31 dutl ~ above ore 1.1.l lIy paid 10 th. lrnallelltcrprise for Ihe purpose of disallowance as 
a deductible expenditure under Ihe MSMED Act, 2006 

a) MSMEagelng.d,cdule Ii ot 

Partieulan 

MSME Undispuled Dues 
Less than 1 year 
1-2 Yew 
2-3 Years 
Moro Iha,,3 yc'" 
1"otnl dues to .. Icro IJId ',,,aU .)Itulln ..... per MSMEDAct , 1006 

b) Ae:eing of nediton other fllllm micro enterprises Iud small enterprises at It 

Plr1ic:ulan 

Less than 1 year 
1-2 Yew 
2-3 Years 
More thllt' l yeAtS 

c) out of the ahove unhllled amount 

As at 
March 31. 2023 

Year ended Marth 31. 
2023 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

2.81 

213.50 
10.20 

126.50 

2.36 

( ~ In Millions) 

A.OI 
March 31. 2022 

( ~ in Millions) 
Asat 

~hrrl, 31, lOll 

(~ lnbofillions) 
AJ at 

Marth 31 I l022 

159.59 
64.53 

224.13 

0.14 



Sol~pur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes 10 Financial State men Is for Ihe year- ended March 31, 2023 

Note 25 : Fair Values 

The carrying values offinancials inslruments of the Company are reasonable and approximations affair values 

( ~ in Millions) 

L Carrying amount Fair Value 

Particulars I Asat As at As~( Asal 
Mo, <II 3J 2023 IIbrch 31,10ll Moreh 3J 2023 I\I.,-.:h 3 1, 20U 

P'illand"t assets 

ElmnCli!Lwru..mtJII.u~u~ 
Loans . . . . 
Others 24.42 21 .14 2442 21.14 
Trade R.eceivable 29.37 29.37 29.37 29,37 
Cash and cash equivalents 24.86 19.39 24 .86 19.39 
Other than Bank balance 782.00 206.79 782.00 206.79 

EiDiln,iDla~~1'I m~n!(llg 11 r~dt ~llu, Ihcwmb... 
hwcS1mc::nt-s 72.82 31.62 72.82 3162 

Financial liabilities 

EinDo211ll 11nuiUIIG! Ul!l1Sm'~ ft!.JI.tIKll:Ii5.\Uwl 
T,.de payables 226.50 224.13 22650 224.13 

BOl'1Owl"8' 10,484.08 9,868.02 10,48408 9,868.02 
Olher frnlurdnllinbUilia. ~7 ,90 8M9 S7,90 8149 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts Jargely due to the short .. tenn 
maturities of these instruments. 

Note 26 : Fair Value Hierarchy 

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole. 

Levell : Quoled (unpdju"ed) price is aelive m",kot foridentica1 assets or lIabl6l;CI. 
Level 2: Valuation leehnique for which Ihe lowcst level input that has a signllkant effect on the fair value measurement arc ob,,,,,,cd, either directly Or indirecUy. 

Le",,13 : Valuation technique for which the lowest level inpul has. significant effect on the fiUrvalue measuremenl is not bued all observable market data. 

Nott 17: FinlHlc.hd rbk nlAnAgenlwC ohjedl"H and polidtt 
The ComllR"y', risk mlUl"lll1T11cnl poli.lu 110 .~lIbli.h.d 10 Idanllly and analyse lb. risko f.cod by lh. Comp~I1Y, 101<1 appropriute risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. 
RilIk DlInnscmonl pollclc~ and sy.'ems lire reviewed ",sularly to reneet ehllJlges III ""licet co,ulili."" and lb. ompuny'. uct1vitlcs. 
11le Board ofDI",eloro h •• ovemll re.pousibilily fO'lho crtoblllhm"'lt"nd oV.r>lglll or III. Comllony'. ri.k ntalJagoll1. nl rr.n •• worle. 
In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit ri. k, liquidity risk and Curn:nty rilk. 

Muk<lRbk 
Malicet lisle ill the risk tlont the fair value or ruture cash flows of. finandollnl trument wlll O"cluOle betaUJe or dlllns.s in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: Inler""t IlIte risk, 
eurrenoy risk and olher price risk, ,uch IS « lullY ~rice risk and co'lIIl1odity rI.k. Fi.anci.llnrtrumoilts 10000led by markel risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVfOCI In"COIOlCll!8 Illd denvali"e 
financial instruments 

The following tBble summarize the carrying amount of financial assets and nabilities recorded ot the end of the period by categories: 

I nt ...... 'lUte rusk 
No infr.structure de"elopment ."d construction bu.iness ia CIIpltallnle.,.! ... Ihe comp.ny Ire OIposed 10 inter .. , I1Ile ri.ks. The compony's inJrastruClwo developmenl and cOMtruction projccu .'0 funded 
to • la,se "'Ion' by debt . "d ""1 Incrwe In inrerClt ox.p ..... nllY bove III ad.er.e effc« on ou, rClU II, of operations and fina"cial condition. The company current debt r •• iliti ..... ny interest 11 variable 
11I1e. as well., fixed IDtes with the pro,",lon for peJiodie reSC1 of in Ie reo. 1111. ... No of Morell 31, 20ll , the m.JorilY of the eompony indebtedllClss WI' .ubJectlo veri.blolnter ..... te •. In view urlh. hlSh 
dabt to «iuity raliol (01' lh • ."mpROy" InlhtltmClllre development proje<ll" on increase in inler .. 1 oxptmse I. likely to h."" • s1gn1fica'" Advuse CUCcI on finnnclni (Csults. 11,. company Ii .. lwiYely 
ensase In Inle,est ,.t. hedging u .... cllon' from time to d"'.lo prot oct ogalnnlntercot 'lite ri.xl. 

The inlerest rate rill< ""pOlure is mainly from changes in fixed and floating i"lcrest I1Iles. The interest IlIle are diselosed in the respective notes 10 the financial statement of the Company. The following 
table analyse the blcakdown of the financial assels and U.bllilles by type ofinttrcot 'lie : 

Financial assets 
Inte .... t bearing 

• fixed interest IlIte 
Loan 
Bank balance other than above 

NOD lo.e .... t bearing 
Othel> 
Cash and cash «iuivalent 

Investments 

Financial LlabUities 
lot ..... t bearing 
• fixed interest rate 

Borrowings 
Unamortised transaction cost 

.. fixed interest rate 
Borrowings 

NOD Inl ..... 1 bearing 
Borrowings 
Trade and other payables 
Other tmancial liabilities 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

182.00 

24.42 
24.86 

72.82 

5,910.00 
·80.64 

4,000,00 

654.72 
226.50 
5790 

( fin Milllo",,) 
Asal 

March 31, 2022 

206.79 

21.74 
19.39 

37.62 

9,205 .80 

662.22 
224.13 

82.49 



Sol"I'Ur Vedeshl Tollw"y Limiled 

Notes to Financial Stntements ror the year ended March 31, 1023 

Liquidily risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk thal the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses, The Company's objective is to, at all times 
maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash Ilnd collateral requirements The Company closely monitors its liquidity position Bnd deploys a robust cash management system It maintains adequate 
sources of financing including debt and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost. 

The Company maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 is the carrying amounts as:· 

( ~ in Millions) 

On ""mAud 1..t~5 (hAn 12 mont .... 1 .o!i reArt > 5 Yrnl" Total 

A. 01 MRrch 31, 2023 
Borrowings 11482 53990 9,82936 10.484 08 
Other financial liabilities 5790 57.90 
Trade and olher payables 226.50 226.50 

I IU2 824.30 9.829.36 10.768.48 
As at Mo.ch 31, 1011 

Borrowings 114.82 56013 67777 8,51530 9.86802 
Other financial liabilities 8249 8249 
Trade and olher payables 124 13 22q 13 

11 4.81 B66.7~ 677.77 81515.30 101174.63 

At present, Company does expect to repay all liabilities 81lheir contractual maturity In order to meet such cash commitments, operating activity is expected to generate sufficient cash inflows 

Note 28 : Capital management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes i5~l}d oquity Cft piud, convertible prtlfi:rClil l!t! shares, share premium Bnd all other equity reserves attributable to the equity 
holders oflhe Company The primal)' obj,",live of the Company's capilal ma n.gcmonl is 10 m .. ,llllise Ihe shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants To maintain or adjust the capital structure, 
Ihe Company may adjusl Ihe dividend paymenl 10 shareholders. relum capilal 10 shareholders or issue new shares The Company monilors capilal using a gearing ralio. which is nel debl divided by 10lal 
capital plus net debt. The Company's policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio i.e. between 6()01o to 80% The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other 
payables. less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations. 

! ~ in Millions) 
A,nl Aul 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Borrowings 10.484.08 9,86802 
Less: cash Rod cash equivalents (2486) f19.39) 
Nel deb I 10,459.21 9,848.62 

Equily (1,301.21) (1,075.76) 
Sub-ordinale debl 4,423 70 4,423 70 
Total sponsor capital 3,122.49 3,347.94 
CRpit.1 nnd ntt debt 131581.71 131196.56 
Gearing ratio (%) 77.01 74.63 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants altached to the interest-beanng loans and borrowings 
that define capital structure requirements Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial 
covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes lor man2lging capital during the period ended March 31 . 2023 and March 31. 2022 

Note 29 : Signiflcllnt accounting Judgement, estimates and ASSulilptions 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and 
the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Estimntes and nssumption, 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared Existing 
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company Such changes are reflected 
in the assumptions when they oc('·ur. 

Resurfacing Expenses 
As per the Service Concession AHreements, the company is obligated to carry out resurfacing of the roads under concession The company estimates the likely provision required towards resurfacing and 
accrues the costs on 8 straight line basis over the period at the end of which resurfacing would be required, in the statement of profit and loss in accordance with Ind AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities Bnd Contingent Assets 

AmortiZAtion or Inl"ngible Assels 

The intangible ftssets which are recognized in the form ofRjght to cbarge users of the infrastructure asset are amortized by taking proportionate of actual revenue received for the year over Total Projected 
Revenue from project to Cost of Intftngiblc assets The estimation of total projection revenue requires significiUlt assumption about expected growth rate and traffic projection for future. All assumptions 
are reviewed at each reporting date 



SolapuJ' Yedcshi TolhvHY Limit('d 

Notes to FinAncinl St:lI(,lI1cnts lar the ycar ended March 31. 2023 

Taus 
Tax expense compl ises or current and deferred lax Cuneo! iucome lax is measured al Ihe nll10uot expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 Deferred income 
taxes reflects the impacl oflimilig dillcrenccs between taxable income and accol1nting i11 come originating dllJing the current period alld reversal of timing differences of earlier years 

Deferred tax is measured based on the lax uues and Ihe tax laws cI1Rcted or substantively enacted al the balance shc~t date Deferred lax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, iflegally enforceable 
right exists to Sel-On" current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the defeHcd la,\ a~se t s and deferred tax liabilities related to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws Deferred 
tax assets are recognised only to the extent thai there is reasonable certainty Ihat sufficient rutu re In,able income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised In situations where 
the Company hilS unabsorbed deplecialioll or calf) ror ..... ald lax losses, all derclled la\ ..I 5~~ t s ;!.IC I~cogn l /.cd (111)' if Ihere is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence Ihal they can be realized 
against future 1l.1>cable PIOfilS 

At each balance sheet date the Company te·assesscs unrecognised deferred tax assels It Ilo!cogniscs ulHecognised detclred tax ilssels to the extentlhat it has become reasonably certain that sufficient future 
taxable income wi1llJe available againsl which such defel red tax R.ssels can be rcalistd or .... iIIU<ll1v cCllflin as Ihe case Illily be 

The carrying nmount of deferred Inx assets arc reviewed at each bnlnnce sheet dale The Company WI itcs~down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably 
certain or virtually certain. as the case may b~, that sunlcicnt future Illxable income will be ftvnilablc I1gainsr which deferred tax asset can be realised Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it 
becomes reasonably cellain or virtually cet tain. as the case may be. Ihot sutl1cient future taxable income ""ill be cwaill1blc 

Minimum aiteillative la» (MAn clcditlS recognised as ,Ill ilssel only when and to Illl' ~ " tcnt [here IS t'oIHincl ll~ c\ idcllce that the Company will pay income tax higher than that computed under MAT, 
during the period Ihal MAris pelmillcd 10 be sct oJf tlndcr the Incollic 'I ax Act. 1961 (spedJicd pCliod) In the yeal III which the MAT credil becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance 
with the recommendations contained in the guidnncc nolC issued by the Institute ofChtlllered AccounliHlIs of ltulia (I( AI), the said a!oset is crealed by way ofa credit to the Statement of profit and loss and 
shown as MAT credit entitlemenl 1 he ('ol11l'<\11Y reviews the same IH Io!a ch balance sheet d:llc alld wliles do\\llllle ~arry ing amount of MAT credit entitlement to the ex lent there is no longer convincing 
evidence to the eneci that the Company will pay Illt.:orne 1;:,)( highcr than MA r dUI ing the spcciJiee! PCI illli 

Note 30 : Disrlosures wilh rcgllrd 10 Toll Collection Rights (Intrlngiblr Assets) : 

Name or COllcessioTl:lirc SolnJlur Yedeshi TollWAY Llmiled 

Slart of concessi 011 period under concession agreement (Appointed dale) January 21, 2015 
End of concession period under concession ftgreemenl April 20, 2044 
Period of concessi on since Ihe appointed date 29 years 
Construction completion dale or scheduled construction completion date under the concession agreement. 

18/07/2018 
as AppliCAble 

The above 80 rl DOFOT projects shall have following I ightsl obligations in nccoldance \\Iilh (he COllc.cssioll Agll'clllent entered into with the Respective Government AUlhorities:-

H Rights to use the Specified assets 
b Obligations to provide or rights to expect provision or sl!rviccs 
c Obligations to deliver or rights tr) leceive at the end orthe Concession 

Note 31 : Other Statutory Illrornuuioll 
i) The CompllllY huve nol tmded or invested in CIYPlO currency or VillUal Cuneney dUI illg the linancial Yl!Clt 

U) The Company does not hold bennmi prolJcn), and 110 ploceedings unucr Bellami transaclion CPruhilmion) Act 19~H have bel:1l initiated against the company 
iii) The Company do not have ally transactions with companies slruck on", 

iv) The Company havt not any such lIaltsacrion which is nOI rl'culdcd in Ihe boob or " CCOLlillS lhal has bl.!cll :. urlcncl":lecl 01 disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Incomc 
Tax Act. 1961 (sllch <IS, search or Sl1l\'ey or any \lthel' relevant provisions oCllle Income l'a ~ Act, 1961 

v) The Company have nol n .. 'Ccived an}' Ittnd from any person(s) 01 cnlil}'{ies}. including limtign cmitil!s (hll1ding PmIY) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) thai lhe 
Company shall 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invesl in olher pcrsnns or entities idclllil1ed in any manner whmsucvcr by 01 (lll b~hdll of the Funding Pouty (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any gum antee, securily or the like on bch~lroflhe Ultimate Beneficinl ies 
vi) The Company haw not advance or loaned or invested (either from bonowecl fund or shrllc plemiltll1 01 any ulilel source 01 kind ot'fund) by the company 10 or in any person(s) or entily(ies). including 
toreigll entities (Funding Palty) with the ul\d~rst~nding (whether I ecorded in writing 01 otherwise) thllt the Comp,IIlY sill'll! : 

(a) directly or indirectly le,le! 01 invest in other pOIsons 1.11 entities identified in any mRnner what~oevcl by or on behalr ofthe company (Ultimale Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any Buarantee. security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Benenciaries 
vii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts includin~ derivative conuact for which there were any milterial foreseeable losses 
viii) The Company has not declared a wilful defauhel by any ballkl financial institution or any other lender dUl iug Ihe year 
ix) Compnay has used the borrowings fi 'om banks and fillancial institutions tor specil1c pmpose ror which it was tRken at the balance sheet date 

Note 32 : Other finnllciAI illrormntion - 1'8.los 
The accounting lalios leguired derived ffCJm the Restated Pinancial InrornHllion under clause II ofPalt A of Schedule VI of the SEBl [CDR Regulations are given below 

Purticulnl'S note I-cfcrcllcc As 01 Asal 
-/ 0 VAriltliCe Remarks 

~lllO'ch 31. 2023 ~I,'·ch 31, 2022 

Current ratio higher in FY22-2J all 

Cunent ratio (in tirne:i) " 099 o )J 202% Bccount of creation of funded MMRA and 
increase in DSRA 

Debt - Equity Rntio h I 02 I 02 0% 

Debt Service Coverag\! RRlio c 2 14 1 1<> 85% Toll Collecllon in FY 22 was impacted due 
to Second wave ofCovid-19 and Landslide 

Return on Equity (ROE): u .7% -15'% -54% 
al Kannad Ghat Section 

lu \'"emf;rY Turnover Itnll,! NA NA NA 
Trade Jeceivables lurnover ralio Ino ortlav~) Nil NA NA 

Trade payables turnover ratio (no of days) • 2~S 296 -3% 

Toll Collection in FY 22 was impacted due 
Net profit ratio f -18% ,611%) -72% to Second wave ofCovid·19 and Landslide 

at Kannad Ghat Section 

Toll Collcction in FY 22 was impacted due 
Nel capltalturnnvc, ratio g I ~7 .14 )} ·96% to Second wove ofCovid~ 19 and Land!lidc 

at Kannad Ghat Section 

Toll Collection in FY 22 was impacted due 
Return on copital employed (RaCE) h 14% 5% ::::~~ 199'10 '0 Second wuveofCovid·19and Landsliue __ 

U. ? A So at Kannad Ghat Section ~ '" hi 

¥.¥; J~ at .--1"" ;' FRN ~ 

l~[ ):1 ~~ 302014E i~ 
~~OACCO~ '-'.s, ~ " , - - '). ~ 



SOiA pur Veduhi TollwAY Limited 

Notes to FinAncial S,.temenlS ror 'he ytor eUlied MAI"eh 31, 2023 

Nole : 
Current ratio (in limes) ; Current Assets I Current liabilities 

Debl' Equily tntlo 1'''101 I)d'l di';;~od ~y &;1111 )' 

Debt Service o"'t r~J.4,t: Ihlh) U) C'RJ (un nl' IIm\... ... ~ : Profit before interest and provision for major maintenance (non cash), divided by Interest expense (net of moratorium interest, interest cost on 
unwinding (10"1# IC' 1n "1\\C..Culc~1 IU'II 111m) 4l1hllti'll3t lon or transaction COSI) together with repaymenls or long tcrlll debt during the period (neued off to the extent of long term loans availed during the 
same period for the repayment) 

d ROE: Nel Prones afier loxes I Averase Shareholder's Equily 
e Trade receivable turnover fatio : Revenue from OPClftliollS I Avenlge (Trade receivable and contract f\sscts) • No of days 
f. Trade payables turnover ratio = Net Credit PUI chases I Average Trade flAyables· No of doys 
g Net profit margin (in %) : profit atler tax I Revenue from operation 
h Nel capilallurnover ralio = Nel Sales I Working Capilal. 
i. Relurn on capilal employed (ROCE)= Earning before inlere51 and laxes I Capilal Employed (C'pilal Employed = Tangible Nel Worth + TOlal Debl + Deferred Tax Liabilily) 

Note 33: BASi. of prellnrnl lon of linAnd.1 stAtements 
The Company has p' ~llIIlcd Ihese slandalone flnancial informal ion (for al1lhe periods plOsenled Iher. in) in accordance wilh Ihe requ;remenl of Schedule Ill· of the Companies ACI; 2013 including 
amendments Iherelo • elfeclive from April 01,202 I 

Note 34 : Trade reeelvRblos 
ConCentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are high. due EO the Company's customer base being limited. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on a quarterly basis 
Bused on historical experience of collecting receivables indicate a low credit risk 

The following table provides infonnation abOllt the ageing of gross carrying amount of trade recievables as at : 

Gross CAfI'ylng Amollnt 

Undisputed TrAde redevables ·considered good 
Conll,"ci asselS (unbillod revenue) 
NOI due 
Less Ihan 6 Monlhs 
6 monchs· I year 
1·2Vears 
2·) Years 
I\·fore 1h.1n ') tc4U 

To,nl 

A,at 
Mnn:t. )1 , 102l 

2937 

19.37 

( Rs in millions) 
A,., 

M.~h 31, 2011 

29.37 

19,37 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note 35: Related parties Disclosures 

N""',eo of rel.ted I1ill1iss 
Holding Company 
IRB Infi'sslructure Trust (w.e.f. 26/0212020) 

Fellow Subsidiary 
IRB Westeoast Tollway Limited (IRBWJ1..) 
AE T(1 l1wDY U mited (AETL) 
Yedeshl Aurnup;abad Tollway Limited (YATL) 
Knlthnl Tollway Umlted (KTL) 
" . ls;tDnnklllll Tollwuy l'l'\\Il1te Limited (PDTPL) 

'0 Tol/way Limited (COT!.) 
KJ$llJIllp,llfh GulBllpw'n TOllwuy Limited (KGTL) 
IR.B II""ur Mom~b"d Tollway Limited (lRBHMTL) 
Udaipur Tollway Limited (UTL) 

Subsidiary company of Sponsor (Only wilh whom there have been transactions durin!! the year/there was balance outstandIn!! at the period end) 
Modern Road Makers Private Limited 

Key Management Personnel 
Ms. Shllpa Todankar, Director 
Mr. Abhay Phatak, Director (w.e.f. 09.03.2022) 
Mr. Jitendra Sharma, Director (upto 28.02.2022) 
Mr. Devendra Rank .. Chief Financial Officer (w.e,f. 10.1 1.2022) 
Mr. Milesh Kamariy .. Company Secretory (w.e.f,01.12.2022) 

Stalement of Transactions with Relaled Parties 
For the year ended March 31,2023 

a) Related Party Transactions 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan, Director 
Mrs. HeenaRaj .. Director (upto 01.10.2021) 
Mrs. Rnllj3",' ParnnjuJlC, Director (w.e.f. 06.10.2021) 
Mr.Jaiprnhlsh Nrultll, Chief Executive Officer (w.c.f. 10.11.2022) 

Particular 
Holding Compaoy Spoolor and ProJett Manager Subsidiary compaD)' of Sponsor 

M~~13 Mar-ll l\1.~13 Mar-22 M ..... 13 Mar-ll 

Sho rl term borrowings - ~.OO 0 0 0 0 

mn Inftuuucture Developers Umited 0 - 0 · 0 

mn infrastructure Tru,t 4.00 0 0 

Olteralion " Maintenance · - 175.96 121.75 - -
!JlB Infrastructure Developers Limited 0 0 175.96 111.75 0 0 

Conl roCl & Site Expenses 0 · 0 1.90 0 

Modem Road Makers Private Limited 0 0 · 1.90 0 

l'aymUllto Tradc payable · · 167.66 165.17 6090 0 

Modem Road Makers Private Limited - - 0 6.90 
IRD infruuucture Developers Limited · - 167.66 165.17 - · 
lntercs~ on unlecured loan 560.00 560.00 - 0 -
'lRB Infrasuucture Trust 560.00 560.00 · 0 · 
IJlI ..... 1 raid on unsecured loan 567.50 365.00 · 0 -
[JlB infrastnlcture Trust 567.50 365.00 0 0 0 

J)lrc<tor SIItiDg Fees 0 0 0 - · 
C.S. K&plan · 0 · · - -
tleen. Raja - · · - - 0 

Jitendra Shanna 0 - · 0 · 
Sldlp. Todankar 0 0 0 - 0 

Al)hay Phatak - · 0 - · -
Rani.,,> Par.n apc 0 · · 

( ~ in Mlllions) 

Kc)' Managemeot PenonDeI 

11101'-13 Mar-22 

- -
0 --
0 -- 0 

0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 

- -
0 0 

. . 

. 0 

0 . 
0.30 0.17 
0.07 0.05 

- 0.02 
- 0.03 

0.09 0.02 
0.05 002 
0.08 0.03 



Sol. pur Yt dtlh i Tollway Limited 
Notes to 1~llInn ial St.tements for the year ended March 31,2023 

b) Rdll !ert "ady lb lellcrs 
( t in MdtlDru) 

Particular 
Holding Company Sponsor and Project Manager Subsidialj' company or Sponsor K~y Management Personnel 

M. r-ll M ",,21 M .... ll TIf. r-21 Mor.lJ M .... ll Mor-ll M .... 7.1 

Short term borrowings 24.00 24.00 90.82 90.82 · · · · 
IRB lnfrastructure Developers Limited · 90.82 90.82 - · · 
1M Infrastructure Trust 2400 24 00 - · - - · 
Lon" (cnn borrowings 4,000.00 4,000.00 - · · - -
lRB Infrastructure Trust 4,000.00 4.000.00 . - · -

Sub-deb! taken 4,4ll.70 4,411.70 · · · · · 
IRB Infrastructure Trust 4.423 .70 4.423.70 . · · - · · 
Trade Payable - · 144.14 144.14 75.56 78.48 - -
IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited · · 144.14 144.14 · · · 
Moclom Road Makers Private Limited · - - 75.56 78.48 -
In(Clres t payable on Unsecured Loan 539.90 547.40 - · · · - -
I.RB Infrastructure Trust 53990 547.40 - - · · 
Other payable 4.89 29.00 - - · · · · 
1M Infrastructure Trust 489 29.00 - - - · · 
Rdellllon Mooey Payable · · 6.06 0.38 2.18 - · 
Moclam Road Makers Private Limited - - - 038 2.18 - · 
lR.B Infrastructure Developers Limited - 6.06 · - · · · 
DI ... ctoy Sitting Fe .. Payable · - - · 0.08 0.05 
C.S. Kaplan - - - - · - 0.02 0.02 
litendra Sharma - - - · - - · 0.01 
RlInJ .... Paranjape 0.02 0.02 
Shllp. Todankar · · · · 0.02 0.01 
Abhny Phatak 0.02 0.00 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
1. The company in the course of our busin", ha\!c cillci ed huo various lf1lulSG11ons with related pru1i~ l1 Le$C lran~ctlons include ~?C1" llon and maintenanco chl tgClS paid for operation and 
maintenance activities sub-contracted, loans and advAltccs, certain road work mtpcnses (or road work contracted '0 Ihe projed of the COU1J'lny. The transactions with rcil'lI ed parties are made on 
tenns equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 
2. OutJlmnding balances OI lh. poriocl •• lld I re uRiecu,ed ... d into:i.~l trco .nd ..,llIement c ecu",ln ca. lI. 
3. Ther. h. v. boen no 8uaran1.C<O provided or ,,,,,,ivcd fo, . ny ",Ioled pony «<civ,bles cr pOY"bles. 

4. For reporting penIX! ended. the oomJ'''''y I ... no' recorded ... y impainnent of receivables relAtinll 10 amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each reporting period through 
eumlnlns lhe Iin.nelnl polillon of.h. rdn 'ed porty and the market in which the related party opcnlles. . 

Note 36 : fly."t • • flu rtportlug period 
There is no , ubscquclIl .... II I ller the reporting period which requires adjustments to the financial statements. 

Note 37 : Previous period comp!lratives 
Previous period's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to confinn to current period'. classilic:.ation. 

As per our rcport on even date 

For M KJ' S & Assocla ... 

Partner 
Membership No.0469S3 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 27/0412023 

For ... d on hehalf of the Board of Directors of 
SolapurYedeabi ToUny Umited 
CIN : U45400MHZ014PTClS1983 

Dircclor 
OIN; 09519500 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 27/0412023 

cw.rFina" d.1 Omo .. 

Place: Mumb.i 
Date: 2710412023 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 2710412023 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 27/04/2023 
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